
 

 

Planning and Highways 
Committee 
 
Tuesday 5 December 2017 at 2.00 pm 

 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Dianne Hurst (Chair), Peter Rippon (Chair), Ian Auckland, David Baker, 
Jack Clarkson, Michelle Cook, Tony Damms, Roger Davison, Bob Johnson, 
Alan Law, Zahira Naz, Joe Otten, Peter Price, Chris Rosling-Josephs and 
Zoe Sykes 
 
Substitute Members 
 
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the 
above Committee Members as and when required. 
 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Planning and Highways Committee is responsible for planning applications, 
Tree Preservation Orders, enforcement action and some highway, footpath, road 
safety and traffic management issues.  
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports 
because they contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on 
the agenda.  
 
Recording is allowed at Planning and Highways Committee meetings under the 
direction of the Chair of the meeting.  Please see the website or contact Democratic 
Services for details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and 
photography at council meetings. 
 
Planning and Highways Committee meetings are normally open to the public but 
sometimes the Committee may have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, 
you will be asked to leave.  Any private items are normally left until last. 
 
Further information on this or any of the agenda items can be obtained by speaking 
to Martyn Riley on 0114 273 4008 or email martyn.riley@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 

 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
mailto:martyn.riley@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 

PLANNING AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE AGENDA 
5 DECEMBER 2017 

 
Order of Business 

 
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
2.   Apologies for Absence  
3.   Exclusion of Public and Press  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the 

press and public 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting 
 

5.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12) 
 Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 November 

2017 
 

6.   Sheffield Conservation Advisory Group (Pages 13 - 16) 
 Minutes of the meeting of the Sheffield Conservation Advisory 

Group held on 17 October 2017 
 

7.   Site Visit  
 To agree a date for any site visits required in connection with 

planning applications prior to the next meeting of the Committee 
 

8.   Proposed Closure of Part of Public Footpath ECC/16B at 
Chapeltown 

(Pages 17 - 26) 

 Report of the Head of Strategic Transport and Infastructure 
 

9.   Proposed Closure of Public Footpath ECC/80 at Ecclesfield (Pages 27 - 36) 
 Report of the Head of Strategic Transport and Infastructure 

 
10.   Proposed Closure of Public Footpath SHE/460 at Norton (Pages 37 - 44) 
 Report of the Head of Strategic Transport and Infrastructure  

 
11.   Applications Under Various Acts/Regulations (Pages 45 - 82) 
 Report of the Director of City Growth Service 

 
12.   Record of Planning Appeal Submissions and Decisions (Pages 83 - 86) 
 Report of the Director of City Growth Services 

 
13.   Date of Next Meeting  
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on 19 December 

2017 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

 leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

 make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

 declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

 Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

 Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

 Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

 Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 

- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

 Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

 a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

 it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 

 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Audit and 
Standards Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 

 

 
Planning and Highways Committee 

 
Meeting held 14 November 2017 

 
PRESENT: Councillors Dianne Hurst (Chair), Ian Auckland, David Baker, 

Jack Clarkson, Michelle Cook, Tony Damms, Roger Davison, 
Bob Johnson, Zahira Naz, Joe Otten, Peter Price, Peter Rippon, 
Chris Rosling-Josephs and Zoe Sykes 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Alan Law, but no substitute 
was appointed. 

 
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 The public and press were informed by the Chair (Councillor Dianne Hurst) that, if 
it was deemed necessary in order to avoid the disclosure to them of exempt 
information as described in Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), they would be excluded from the meeting during consideration of an 
application for planning permission under Section 73 to remove Condition 22 in 
respect of planning permission Case No. 16/01169/OUT concerning the 
Affordable Housing Provision at the Oughtibridge Mill Sheffield Site, 22 to 24 Main 
Road, Wharncliffe Side (Case No. 17/02624/OUT). 

 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 Councillor Bob Johnson declared (a) a personal interest in an application for 
planning permission in respect of the retention of a dwellinghouse and decking at 
the garage site adjacent to 4 Langsett Avenue (Case No. 17/03331/FUL) as he 
lived nearby, but had not predetermined his views on the application and would 
participate in its determination and (b) a personal interest as a local Ward 
Councillor in (i) an application for planning permission under Section 73 to vary 
Condition No 2. (Approved plans), Condition No 3. (permitted use), Conditions at 
Ballast Phoenix Ltd, Beeley Wood Recycling Village, 2 Beeley Wood Lane (Case 
No. 16/04644/FUL) and (ii) an application for planning permission for the 
development at land at the junction of Limestone Cottage Lane and Beeley Wood 
Lane (Case No. 16/04046/FUL), but stated he had not predetermined his views on 
the applications and would participate in their determination. 

  
3.2 Councillor Ian Auckland declared a personal interest as a local Ward Councillor in 

an application for the erection of 5 dwellinghouses with associated parking 
accommodation and landscaping at land adjacent to 42 Abbey View Road (Case 
No. 17/00199/FUL).  Councillor Auckland advised that he had not been involved 
with a survey undertaken by Graves Park Ward Councillors and that he had not 
predetermined his views on the application and would participate in its 
determination. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 14.11.2017 

  
3.3 Councillor Roger Davison declared a personal interest as a local Ward Councillor 

in an application for planning permission for the development at Ecclesall Infant 
School, High Storrs Road (Case No. 17/02518/FUL).  Councillor Davison stated 
that he had not predetermined his views on the application and would participate in 
its determination. 

  
3.4 Councillor David Baker declared a personal interest as a local Ward Councillor in 

(a) an application for planning permission under Section 73 to vary Conditions as 
imposed by planning permission Case No. 13/02199/FUL at Ballast Phoenix Ltd, 
Beeley Wood Recycling Village, 2 Beeley Wood Lane (Case No. 16/04644/FUL) 
and (b) an application for planning permission for development at the junction of 
Limestone Cottage Lane and Beeley Wood Lane, (Case No. 16/04046/FUL) as he 
had received a number of representations.  Councillor Baker advised that he had 
not commented on the representations and would participate in the determination 
of the applications as he had not predetermined his views on the proposed 
developments. 

  
3.5 Councillor Jack Clarkson declared a personal interest (a) as a Member of 

Stocksbridge Town Council in respect of an application for planning permission 
under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General) Regulations 1992 
for the construction of a bituminous macadam surfaced shared use route for 
pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians at the route running between a level crossing 
over Liberty Steel Rail Lines into Fox Valley Housing Site and track running to 
Ellen Cliff Farm leading from Wortley Road, Deepcar (Case No. 17/03102/RG3) 
and (b) as a local Ward Councillor in respect of an application for planning 
permission under Section 73 to remove Condition 22 under planning permission 
Case No. 16/01169/OUT concerning the Affordable Housing Provision at the 
Oughtibridge Mill Sheffield site, 22 to 24 Main Road, Wharncliffe Side (Case No. 
17/02624/OUT).  Councillor Clarkson stated that he had not commented on the 
applications and would participate in their determination as he had not 
predetermined his views on the proposed developments. 

  
3.6 Councillor Tony Damms declared a personal interest as a local Ward Councillor in 

(a) an application for planning permission under Section 73 to vary Condition No 2. 
(Approved plans), Conditions at Ballast Phoenix Ltd, Beeley Wood Recycling 
Village, 2 Beeley Wood Lane (Case No. 16/04644/FUL) and (b) an application for 
planning permission for development at land at the junction of Limestone Cottage 
Lane and Beeley Wood Lane (Case No. 16/04046/FUL).  Councillor Damms stated 
that he had not predetermined his views on the applications and would participate 
in their determination. 

 
4.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee, held on 24 October 2017, were 
approved as a correct record. 

 
5.   
 

SITE VISIT 
 

5.1 RESOLVED: That the Chief Planning Officer, in liaison with a Co-Chair, be 

Page 6



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 14.11.2017 

authorised to make arrangements for a site visit in connection with any planning 
applications requiring a visit by Members prior to the next meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
6.   
 

APPLICATIONS UNDER VARIOUS ACTS/REGULATIONS 
 

6.1 RESOLVED: That (a) the applications now submitted for permission to develop 
land under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Regulations made 
thereunder and for consent under the Town and Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 1989, be decided, granted or refused as stated in the 
report to this Committee for this date and as amended in the minutes of this 
meeting, and the requisite notices issued; the granting of any permission or 
consent shall not constitute approval, permission or consent by this Committee or 
the Council for any other purpose; 

  
 (b) having (i) heard representations at the meeting from (A) three local residents 

objecting to the proposed development and (B) a representative of the applicant 
and a representative of the infant school and two local residents speaking in 
support of the proposed development and (ii) noted additional representations from 
Sport England, High Storrs School Governing Body and ten additional 
representations objecting to the development together with the officer’s responses, 
as detailed in a supplementary report circulated at the meeting, an application for 
planning permission for two/single-storey extensions and alterations to a school to 
form additional teaching accommodation, in order to enable an increase of pupil 
numbers from 180 to 630, provision of a multi-use games area (MUGA), increase 
in car parking provision and associated hard and soft landscaping works (amended 
information received on 13 October 2017, including updated highway mitigation 
measures) at Ecclesall Infant School, High Storrs Road (Case No. 17/02518/FUL) 
be granted, conditionally, subject to (1) new conditions (I) to ensure the use of the 
site by Ecclesall Rangers Junior Football Club and (II) in respect of consideration 
being given to providing replacement car parking at High Storrs School for their 
staff and (2) amendments to (I) Condition 2 in respect of any proposals concerning 
replacement car parking places for High Storrs School staff, (II) Condition 9 in 
respect of the Community Use Agreement and consultation with Sport England, 
(III) Condition 29 in respect of the proposed masonry now submitted by the 
applicant on 3 November 2017 for the extension and (IV) Condition 39 in respect 
of the deletion of the wording relating to the retention of ten car parking spaces 
within the site for staff associated with High Storrs School, all as detailed in the 
aforementioned supplementary report, (3) amendments made at the meeting to 
Conditions 6 and 7 requiring validation of the surface water drainage and disposal 
measures to be undertaken to ensure they meet the approved details and (4) the 
proposed details relating to Condition 21 being submitted to a future meeting of 
this Committee for approval; 

  
 (c) notwithstanding the officer’s recommendation, an application for planning 

permission for the retention of a dwellinghouse and decking, including 
amendments to the fenestration and facing materials (retrospective application), at 
the garage site adjacent to 4 Langsett Avenue (Case No. 17/03331/FUL) be 
refused as the Committee consider that the proposed design and appearance was 
not in keeping with the character of the street scene and detrimental to the visual 

Page 7



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 14.11.2017 

amenities of the area; 
  
 (d) having (i) noted additional representations from the applicant and an objector 

and the officer’s response, as detailed in a supplementary report circulated at the 
meeting and (ii) heard representations from the applicant’s representative 
speaking at the meeting in support of the development, an application for planning 
permission under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General) 
Regulations 1992 be granted, conditionally, to the City Council for the construction 
of a bituminous macadam surfaced shared use route for pedestrians, cyclists and 
equestrians, including removal of existing trees and vegetation, installation of 
fencing, a bridge over the Little Don river, with access ramps and minor planting 
and habitat management works, as amended 06.10.17, 11.10.17, 20.10.17 and 
24.10.17, at the route running between a level crossing over Liberty Steel Rail 
Lines into Fox Valley Housing Site and the track running to Ellen Cliff Farm leading 
from Wortley Road, Deepcar (Case No. 17/03102/RG3), subject to amendments to 
(A) Condition 2 in respect of revised plans and (B) Condition 9 in respect of the 
public sewers, all as detailed in the aforementioned supplementary report; 

  
 (e) having heard representations from a local Ward Councillor and local resident 

speaking at the meeting objecting to the proposed development, an application for 
planning permission for the erection of a raised decking to provide an outdoor 
seating area to Panahar Restaurant, 478 to 480 Fulwood Road (Case No. 
17/02651/FUL) be granted, conditionally; 

  
 (f) having (i) noted an additional representation from the South Yorkshire Police 

Service commenting on the proposed development, as detailed in a supplementary 
report circulated at the meeting and (ii) heard representations from a 
representative of the Kelham Island Community Alliance speaking at the meeting 
objecting to the proposed development and from the applicant’s representative 
speaking in support of the development, an application for planning permission for 
the demolition of existing buildings and erection of a 5 to 9 storey building 
comprising 131 apartments, flexible commercial unit to ground floor (421sqm - Use 
Class A1/A2/A3/B1(a)), with associated access, refuse and cycle storage, car 
parking, landscaping, amenity space and public realm improvements, at the site of 
Mackley’s building and 2 Chatham Street (Case No. 17/02570/FUL) be granted, 
conditionally, subject to (A) an additional condition to require a Construction 
Management Plan, (B) Condition 9 being amended to include the provision of two 
covered bus stops and (C) an additional directive advising the applicant of the 
benefit of the building being designed to Secured by Design Standards, all as 
detailed in the aforementioned supplementary report; 

  
 (g) having heard representations at the meeting from the applicant’s representative 

speaking in support of the development, an application for planning permission for 
the demolition of an existing office building and erection of 43 apartments 
(amended plans received 27th September 2017) at Hewitts Chartered 
Accountants, 60 Scotland Street (Case No. 17/01867/FUL) be granted, 
conditionally; 

  
 (h) having (i) noted additional representations commenting on the proposed 

application and the officer’s response, as detailed in a supplementary report 

Page 8



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 14.11.2017 

circulated at the meeting and (ii) heard representations at the meeting from two 
local residents and a local Ward Councillor objecting to the proposed development, 
an application for planning permission for the erection of 5 dwellinghouses with 
associated parking accommodation and landscaping at land adjacent to 42 Abbey 
View Road (Case No. 17/00199/FUL) be granted, conditionally; 

  
 (i) having (i) noted the officer’s clarification on the proposed development andtwo 

additional representations objecting to the development and the officer’s response, 
as detailed in a supplementary report circulated at the meeting and (ii) heard 
representations at the meeting from a local resident objecting to the proposed 
development and from the applicant’s representative supporting the proposed 
development, an application for planning permission under Section 73 to vary 
Condition No 2. (approved plans), Condition No 3. (permitted use), Condition No 8. 
(opening days/hours) and Condition No 21. (stockpile height) - as imposed by 
planning permission Case No. 13/02199/FUL, to increase the throughput to 
200,000 tonnes per annum, increase the operational hours, increase stockpile 
heights and revise the external storage layout (this application is accompanied by 
an Environmental Statement received 15.5.17 - amended description), as 
amended 15.5.17, 19.7.17, 10.8.17, 11.8.17 and 30.10.17, at Ballast Phoenix Ltd, 
Beeley Wood Recycling Village, 2 Beeley Wood Lane (Case No. 16/04644/FUL) 
be granted, conditionally; 

  
 (j) having (i) noted four additional representations objecting to the proposed 

development and the officer’s response, as detailed in a supplementary report 
circulated at the meeting and (ii) heard representations at the meeting from three 
local residents objecting to the proposed development and from two of the 
applicants supporting the proposed development, an application for planning 
permission for the erection of general industrial (use class B2), business (use class 
B1) and storage/distribution (use class B8) building, including steel press shop with 
associated parking, external storage area/yard and security office, as amended 
12.5.17, 1.9.17, 23.10.17, 24.10.17, 25.10.17, at land at the junction of Limestone 
Cottage Lane and Beeley Wood Lane (Case No. 16/04046/FUL) be granted, 
conditionally, subject to Condition 9 being amended to require the addition of the 
details of the equipment and processes to be undertaken and controlled by the 
Noise Management Plan, as detailed in the aforementioned supplementary report; 

  
 (k) having noted that Yorkshire Water had removed their objection to the 

development and that the officer recommendation, as detailed in a supplementary 
report circulated at the meeting, for delegated powers to be given to the Chief 
Planning Officer in respect of this matter was no longer necessary, an application 
for planning permission for the erection of 23 dwellinghouses, 1 bungalow and 24 
apartments in a 4 x 3-storey block at land east of Britannia Road and north of High 
Hazels Park, Infield Lane (Case No. 16/03529/FUL) be granted, conditionally, 
subject to (i) additional conditions (A) in respect of obscured glazing  for specified 
windows on the side elevations for (1) plots 8, 9 and 12, (2) plots 14, 15 and 16, 
with an additional restriction to prevent the windows from opening and (3) plots 21, 
22 and 23, (B) requiring the driveways and hardstandings to be appropriately 
surfaced and (C) in respect of requiring an Employment and Training Strategy, (ii) 
amendments to (A) Condition 2 being by the deletion of Plan No. 1809-09 Rev A 
as it had not been approved by officers, (B) Condition 4 in respect of clarifying the 

Page 9



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 14.11.2017 

details required, (C) Condition 5 in respect of clarifying the site investigations and 
report required concerning the exact coal mining legacy issues on the site, (D) 
Condition 8 in respect of  clarifying the trees to be retained by a Tree Survey, as 
detailed in the Survey’s plan and (E) Condition 20 in respect of the two additional 
items required in large scale details along with their materials and finishes, all as 
detailed in the aforementioned supplementary report and (iii) an additional 
condition attached at the meeting requiring the development to be carried out in 
accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment Report that had been undertaken; 
and 

  
 (l) having (i) noted additional representations from the Campaign to Protect Rural 

England and the Loxley Valley Protection Society, as detailed in a supplementary 
report circulated at the meeting and (ii) heard representations from the applicant 
speaking at the meeting in support of the development, an application for planning 
permission under Section 73 to remove Condition 22 in respect of planning 
permission Case No. 16/01169/OUT concerning the Affordable Housing Provision 
at the Oughtibridge Mill Sheffield site, 22 to 24 Main Road, Wharncliffe Side (Case 
No. 17/02624/OUT) be granted, conditionally. 

  
 (NOTES: (1) During consideration of the aforementioned application concerning 

Oughtibridge Mill Sheffield Site, 22 to 24 Main Road, Wharncliffe Side (Case No. 
17/02624/OUT), the Director of Legal and Governance recommended orally that, 
pursuant to Section 100A and Paragraphs 5 and 10 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) the public and press should be excluded from 
part of the meeting as it related to the future conduct of a pending appeal because: 

  
  the proceedings relate to exempt information; namely, information in respect 

of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal 
proceedings; and  

  
  in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 

exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
  
 Accordingly, it was:- RESOLVED:  That the public and press be excluded from the 

meeting during part of the discussion on Case No. 17/02624/OUT on the grounds 
that, if the public and press were present during the transaction of such business, 
there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as described in 
paragraphs 5 and 10 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended. 

  
  (2) The Chair (Councillor Dianne Hurst) was not present in the room with regard to 

the consideration of the applications for the demolition of an existing office building 
and erection of 43 apartments at Hewitts Chartered Accountants, 60 Scotland 
Street (Case No. 17/01867/FUL) and for the erection of 5 dwellinghouses with 
associated parking accommodation and landscaping at land adjacent to 42 Abbey 
View Road (Case No. 17/00199/FUL) and the meeting was chaired by Councillor 
Peter Rippon for those two items.) 

 
7.   
 

RECORD OF PLANNING APPEAL SUBMISSIONS AND DECISIONS 
 

Page 10



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 14.11.2017 

7.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Chief Planning Officer detailing 
(a) the planning appeals recently submitted to the Secretary of State and (b) the 
outcome of recent planning appeals, along with a summary of the reasons given 
by the Secretary of State in his decision. 

 
8.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

8.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee will be held at 2:00p.m on 
Tuesday, 5 December 2017 at the Town Hall. 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



                         SHEFFIELD CONSERVATION ADVISORY GROUP          
                                   
                                Meeting held 17th October, 2017 
 
 
  
PRESENT;              Name                                         Organisation 
              
                      Dr. Philip Booth (Chair)             Co-opted   Member 
            Dr. Jo Lintonbon                        University of  
                               (Deputy Chair)                            Sheffield                                         
                               Prof Clyde Binfield                      Twentieth Century               
                                                                                   Society 
                                Mr. Patrick Burns         Co-opted Member
             Liz Godfrey                                Civic Trust 
                                Mr. Howard Greaves         Hallamshire Historic     
                                                                                   Buildings Society 
                                Mr. Graham Hague                    Victorian Society/      
                                                                                   South Yorkshire  
                                                                                   Industrial History 
                                                                                   Society 
                                Dr. Roger Harper                        Ancient Monuments 
                                                                                   Society                         
                                Mr. Philip Moore                         Sheffield Society of 
                                                                                   Architects 
                                Mr. Andrew Shepherd                Society for the 
                                                                                   Preservation of    

                                                   Ancient Buildings                                                
                                
                       
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
    Apologies for absence were received from Mr Rob Darrington (Royal Institute of 
    Chartered Surveyors), Mr Tim Hale (Chamber of Commerce), Mr Bob Hawkins 
    (Council for the Protection of Rural England), Mr Bob Marshall (Royal 
    Town Planning Institute) and Mr Jan Woudstra (Landscape Institute). 
 
2. MINUTES 
    The minutes of the meeting on 19th September, 2017 were approved as a 
    correct record, subject to the substitution:- 
    (a) in item 4(b) of the word “meeting” for the word“conference”;  
    (b) in item 7.2, of the words “Mr Hale and Ms Godfrey declared an interest in the        
    above item” for the words “Mr Hale declared an interest in the above item";  
    (c) in item 7.3, of the words “would provide more units than the building was 
    capable of providing” for the words "was more than the building was capable of  
    holding "; and 
    (d) in item 7.6 the words “the proposed use was more than the building was 
    capable of providing” for the words “the proposed use was more than the building   
    was capable of holding " 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



(Sheffield Conservation Advisory Group 17.10.17)                                              

 2 

    Arising therefrom, the Group (i) noted that:- 
    (A) following the receipt of a further email in respect of photographs of 
    Claremont House, Mr. Greaves had contacted the Police; 
    (B) the process of assessing expressions of interest in Mount   
    Pleasant, Sharrow Lane was continuing;   
    (C) Mr. Hague had attended the talk by Miss Ruth Harman at the 

recent Off the Shelf Festival, in the City and had considered it to be  
    stimulating. He welcomed the forthcoming publication of the Pevsner    

Guide, to which it related;    
     (D) there had been no development with regard to Bennet Cottage 
     and there would be no meeting with the developer, until amended  
     plans were submitted. The building was not listed, so the key aim was 
     to ensure that the best possible design was achieved. The Chief 
     Planning Officer had requested drawings to indicate its visibility, in 
     order to assess its compliance with the Development Plan and its 
     impact on the Green Belt;  
     (E) there had been no response, from the developer, to   
     correspondence regarding the Lion Works; and 
     (F) there had recently been an article in the local press regarding the  
     access to Chapel Walk. A lot of repairs were being carried out on 
     Fargate. Prior notification of the works had been submitted. Chapel  
     Walk, which was still accessible from Fargate, would lend itself to 
     conversion to an arcade; and 
     (ii) extended its sympathy and advice to Mr. Greaves and expressed  
     its concern at his treatment, with regard to the photographs of  
     Claremont House.    
 
4.  CHAIR’S REPORT 
     The Chair reported that he and Ms. Godfrey had attended the recent 
     launch event at Sheffield Hallam University, for the Heritage Strategy   
     prepared by Joined Up Heritage Sheffield (JUHS), which was 
     available online. He had mixed feelings about the event, particularly  
     regarding what appeared to be the emphasis on the role of heritage in  
     promoting the economic development of the City,  although the 
     Strategy itself does not have that emphasis. The Strategy does refer, 
     Appropriately, to the distinctiveness of the City and how to nurture and  
     protect it. There were also the questions of who would implement the 
     Strategy and how it would work.  
        
     Liz Godfrey stated that a Heritage Strategy Board would be set up. 
     JUHS would become a charitable incorporated organisation. The 
     Board would move the framework on, to become the strategy of 

JUHS. 
     It was assumed that the City Council would want to become   
     involved in its work. A Heritage Strategy Officer of Nottingham City  
     Council had given a presentation at the launch event, on working with  
     organisations such as JUHS. Heritage England had indicated that it  

Page 14



(Sheffield Conservation Advisory Group 17.10.17)                                        

 3 

    encouraged the formation of a strategy by such organisations. JUHS 
would keep in contact with Heritage England, which had given funding 
to the equivalent organisation in Nottingham.  

 
5. CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER’S REPORT  
    The Group noted that there was nothing to report under this item of   
    business.  
 
6. SHEFFIELD SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN 
    PANEL 
    The Group noted that there was no scheduled meeting of the  
    Sheffield Sustainable Development and Design Panel. 
       
7. HERITAGE ASSETS 
    The Group considered the following applications for planning 
    permission affecting heritage assets and made the observations 
    stated:- 
 
    7.1 Public realm improvements to Fitzalan Square and enhancements to  
    access to Esperanto Place, including demolition of 31-35 Arundel Gate and   
    existing structures, tree felling and re-arrangement of highway. 
    (Case number: 17/04081/RG3) 
  
    The Group welcomed the intention to carry out improvements, in principle, but felt 
    concern at the present proposals.  The Group requested further detail of the  
    scheme. The Group recommended that the cycle route be located around the  
    edge of the pedestrian area, rather than through it. 
 
    7.2 Alterations and extensions to North Lodge Gatehouse, to form a  
    dwelling house, at Kenwood Hall Hotel, Kenwood Road 
    (Case number 17/03945/LBC and 17/03944/FUL). 
     
    The Group noted that the Lodge had been at risk for some time. The Group felt   
    that the proposed car park in front of the Lodge would set a dangerous precedent 
    and that a car park would have a very different effect on the building, than would  
    traffic passing through the arch. The Group felt concern at the proposed infill 
    glazing for the arch and felt that an alternative form of glazing should be 
    employed, possibly using a glass and  wood combination. The Group had no 
    objection, in principle, to creating the new route to the hotel, provided it was done 
    with careful treatment. 
 
    7.3 Application under Section 73 to allow for demolition and rebuilding of 
    retained mill building and to vary conditions 2 (approved plans), 3   
    (samples), 4 (large scale details), 7 (commercial units), 8 (cafe/bar), 9 
    (hours of use of cafe/bar) and 19 (green roofs) of planning permission 
    6/0198/SQL, (amended description and plans received 27/9/2017) in respect 
    of the erection of a car park at the site of the Bernard Works, Sylvester 
    Gardens. 
    (Case number 17/00604/FUL) 

Page 15



(Sheffield Conservation Advisory Group 17.10.17)                                              

 4 

      
    The Group accepted with regret the necessity of demolishing the existing building, 
    but did not feel able to obect to the proposed rebuilding. The Group recommended 
    the use of black mortar.  The Group felt that the existing features, particularly the   
    cast iron columns, should be recorded and  should be reused as far as possible.  
 
    Note; Mr. Moore declared an interest in the above item and left the meeting for the 
    duration of its consideration by the Group. 
 
8. UPDATE 
    The Chief Planning Officer gave an update report on various matters and the 
    Group noted that :– 
    (a) there was nothing further to report with regard to Claremont House and 
    Carbrook Hall; and 
    (b) there had been a further breakin at Loxley Chapel. A dangerous structure 
    notice had been served on the owner, to ensure that scaffolding would be             
    re-erected to support a chimney on the building.   
       
9. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 
    Members of the Group reported on development affecting heritage assets and   
    conservation areas and the Group noted that: – 
    (a) the Chief Planning Officer would investigate and report back on the  
    position regarding the Farfield Inn, Neepsend;  
    (b) a recent edition of the Asian Times contained an article on the potential for 
    development of the Central Library, Surrey Street; and 
    (c) former Councillor Bill Michie, who had been one of the first Councillors to 
    recognise the importance of its heritage to the City, had died recently. 

 
    The Group noted the information.   
 
10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
     The Group noted that the next meeting would be held on 21st  
     November, next. 

 
(Note; the above minutes are subject to amendment at a future meeting.) 
 

Page 16



 
 

Report of:   Director of Culture and Environment 
______________________________________________________________ 

Date:    5th December 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 

Subject:  

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118. PROPOSED CLOSURE OF PART OF 
PUBLIC FOOTPATH ECC\16B AT CHAPELTOWN, SHEFFIELD S35 
______________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Mark Reeder 0114 2736125 
______________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

To seek authority to process the Public Path Closure Order required for closing part 
of the definitive public footpath ECC\16B between Stanley Road and footpath 
ECC\32B in the Chapeltown area of Sheffield 
______________________________________________________________ 

Reasons for Recommendations   

Based on the above information, the proposed closure of part of definitive public 
footpath ECC\16B, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, is supported by 
Officers. 

Recommendations: 

Raise no objections to the proposed closure of definitive public footpath ECC\16B, 
as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, subject to satisfactory arrangements 
being made with Statutory Undertakers in connection with any of their mains and 
services that may be affected. 

Authority be given to the Director of Legal and Governance to 

a. take all necessary action to close the footpath under the powers 
contained within Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980; 

b. confirm the Order as an Unopposed Order, in the event of no 
objections being received, or any objections received being 
resolved. 

______________________________________________________________ 

Background Papers: 
 

Category of Report: OPEN 
 

   

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning & Highways 

Committee 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



DIRECTOR OF CULTURE AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
             REPORT TO PLANNING  

AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE  
5th December 2017 
 

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118. PROPOSED CLOSURE OF PART OF 
PUBLIC FOOTPATH ECC\16B AT CHAPELTOWN, SHEFFIELD S35 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To seek authority to process the Public Path Closure Order required for 

closing part of the definitive public footpath ECC\16B between Stanley Road 
and footpath ECC\32B in the Chapeltown area of Sheffield shown as a solid 
black-line on the plan included as Appendix A. 

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The City Council is making an application to close the footpath ECC\16B 

between Stanley Road and footpath ECC\32B in the Chapeltown area of 
Sheffield, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A. 
 

2.2 This application is on behalf of the City Council’s Principal Public Rights of 
Way Officer who contends that it is no longer required for public use and can 
be considered surplus to the requirements of the Highway Authority.  
 

2.3 Footpath ECC\16B has a recorded width of 3 feet and is approximately 169 
metres between Stanley Road and its junction with footpath ECC\32B. 

 
2.4 This narrow route is enclosed by high fences and garden boundaries, e.g. 

Leylandii hedging, on both sides creating a very claustrophobic environment. 
Photographs showing this and the general condition of the route are included 
as Appendix B.  
 

2.5 On site there is little evidence of pedestrian use and several parts of the path 
are blocked by damaged fencing and overgrown vegetation. No complaints 
have been received regarding these obstructions, adding weight to the view 
that there is minimal public demand for this path. Evidence of these 
obstructions can be seen on the photographs included as Appendix B. 
 

2.6 Two alternative routes are available to pedestrians. These are along the 
footways of either Charlton Brook Crescent or Livingstone Road. Though they 
are longer at 240m and 245m respectively (cf. 169 metres length of the 
current route), they are well-lit and are generally more pleasant to walk than 
the subject footpath. These alternative routes are shown on the plan included 
as Appendix C. 
 

 
 

Page 18



 
2.7 The ownership of the subsoil, that carries footpath ECC\16B, is divided 

between the owners of 29 to 71 Charlton Brook Crescent and 30 Stanley 
Road. Once closed the owners of these properties will be at liberty, should 
they wish, to extend their gardens within the boundaries of their registered 
titles, to include the land currently in use for the path. The PROW Group will 
fence off the route at either end once it is legally closed. 
 
 

3.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Consultations have been carried out with Statutory Undertakers (i.e. utility 

companies), the Emergency Services, and other relevant bodies, including 
footpath societies. 
 

3.2 Not all the consultees had responded at the time of writing this report. But of 
those that have responded, no objections have been received. 
 

3.3 The Ramblers’ Association and Peak and Northern Footpath Society have not 
objected to the proposal. 

 
3.4 If any negative comments relating to the application are received before the 

Planning and Highways Committee meeting, they will be reported verbally. 
 
 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Director of Legal & Governance has been consulted and has advised that 

if the Council was minded to agree to this application it would be appropriate 
to process the closure using the powers contained within Section 118 of the 
Highways Act 1980. These powers provide for a public footpath to be closed 
on the grounds that it is not needed for public use. 

 
 
5.0 HIGHWAY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The subject path ECC\16B is part of the definitive Public Rights of Way 

network in the Chapeltown area of Sheffield. 
 

5.2 The proposed closure should not adversely affect the public’s enjoyment of 
the area and will have no detrimental effect on the surrounding highway 
network and its users. 

 
 
6.0 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 No particular equal opportunity implications arise from the proposal in this 

report. 
 
 
 

Page 19



7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 No particular environmental implications arise from the proposal in this report. 
 
 
8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 All the costs of the Closure Order application (in this case £3,150), and any 

other associated costs will be met from the Public Rights of Way budget.  
 

8.2 Once closed there will be no future maintenance liability to the PROW group. 
 
 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 Based on the above information, the proposed closure of part of definitive 

public footpath ECC\16B, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, is 
supported by Officers. 

 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Raise no objections to the proposed closure of definitive public footpath 

ECC\16B, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, subject to 
satisfactory arrangements being made with Statutory Undertakers in 
connection with any of their mains and services that may be affected. 

 
10.2 Authority be given to the Director of Legal & Governance to 
 

c. take all necessary action to close the footpath under the powers contained 
within Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980; 

 
d. confirm the Order as an Unopposed Order, in the event of no objections 

being received, or any objections received being resolved. 
 

 

 
 
Philip Beecroft 
Head of Highway Maintenance                                                  23rd November 2017 

Page 20



Highway Records
Development Services
Howden House
Union Street
Sheffield
S1 2SH

434162.4964:396400.7834

434135.4591:396568.4726

CHARLTONBROOK

64

46
62

Wood

Charlton Hill

Recreation Ground

HILL

The Bridge

CHARLTON

COURT

BLACKBURN

CL
OS

E

DERWENT DRIVE

HO
LL

OW
 G

AT
E

STANLEY ROAD

LIVINGSTONE
WHARFEDALE DRIVE

SWALE DRIVE

LIVINGSTONE ROAD

MOUNT ROAD

AVON GROVE

CHARLTONBROOK

CHARLTONBROOK

WHARFEDALE DRIVE

±

0 30 6015
Metres

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 OS licence number 100018816. You are permitted to use this
data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Highways Act 1980
Section 118
Proposed Closure of footpath ECC\16B

Scale: 1:2,000

Footpath to be closed

ECC\16B

Footpath Not Affected

APPENDIX A

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CHARLTONBROOK

CHARLTON BROOK CRES

STANLEY

LIVINGSTONE ROAD
11

9c
11a

23

9d
9a

31

29
39

32

35

55

58

48

42
1a3a

59
71

14

52 13

12

18

30

36

24
45

2816

10

15

22

27

9b

7

43

57

51

2
26

65

17

54

1
5

Ashlea

29

11

29

32

A

APPENDIX B

PROPOSAL UNDER PLANNING  APPLICATION 17/00783/FUL. 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY, NOT TO BE CONSIDERED AS 
PART OF THIS CONSULTATION

AI

F

AC

AG

AB

AD
AE

AH

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

CHARLTONBROOK

CHARLTON
BROOK CRESCENT

DERWENT DRIVE

STANLEY ROAD

MOUNT ROAD

AVON GROVE

11
9c

11a

23

9d
9a

31

29

32

35

55

48

14

52

13

12

18

45

28

16

10

15

3

27

9b

7

51

2

26

65

75

1
9

Sub
Sta

LB

Ashlea

El

2

11

26

APPENDIX C

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 OS licence number 100018816. Use of this data
is subject to terms and conditions. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not
permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

25 0 2512.5 Meters

FOOTPATH TO BE CLOSED

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ALTERNATIVE ROUTE ALONG LIVINGSTONE ROAD

ALTERNATIVE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE ALONG 
CHARLTON BROOK CRESCENT

LIVINGSTONE ROAD

CHARLTON BROOK CRESCENT

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of:   Director of Culture and Environment 
______________________________________________________________ 

Date:    5th December 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 

Subject:  
 
HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118. PROPOSED CLOSURE OF PUBLIC 
FOOTPATH ECC\80 AT ECCLESFIELD, SHEFFIELD S35 
______________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Mark Reeder 0114 2736125 
______________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

To seek authority to process the Public Path Closure Order required for closing the 
definitive public footpath ECC\80 between Well Lane (private road) and bridleway 
ECC\81 in the Ecclesfield area of Sheffield. 
______________________________________________________________ 

Reasons for Recommendations   

Based on the above information, the proposed closure of definitive public footpath 
ECC\80, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, is supported by Officers. 

Recommendations: 

Raise no objections to the proposed closure of definitive public footpath ECC\80, as 
shown on the plan included as Appendix A, subject to satisfactory arrangements 
being made with Statutory Undertakers in connection with any of their mains and 
services that may be affected. 

Authority be given to the Director of Legal and Governance to 

a. take all necessary action to close the footpath under the powers 
contained within Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980; 

b. confirm the Order as an Unopposed Order, in the event of no 
objections being received, or any objections received being 
resolved. 

______________________________________________________________ 

Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

   

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning & Highways 

Committee 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



DIRECTOR OF CULTURE AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
             REPORT TO PLANNING  

AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE  
5th December 2017 
 

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118. PROPOSED CLOSURE OF PUBLIC 
FOOTPATH ECC\80 AT ECCLESFIELD, SHEFFIELD S35 
 
1.0 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To seek authority to process the Public Path Closure Order required for 

closing the definitive public footpath ECC\80 between Well Lane (private 
road) and bridleway ECC\81 in the Ecclesfield area of Sheffield. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The City Council is making an application to close the footpath ECC\80 

between Well Lane (private road) and bridleway ECC\81 in the Ecclesfield 
area of Sheffield, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A. 
 

2.2 This application is on behalf of the City Council’s Principal Public Rights of 
Way Officer who contends that it is no longer required for public use and can 
be considered surplus to the requirements of the Highway Authority.  
 

2.3 Footpath ECC\80 has a recorded length of 0.2 miles and a width of 3 feet. 
The route (shown as solid black line on the plan included as Appendix A) 
commences at the junction of High Street and Well Lane, heading south west 
for approximately 45 metres, crossing a stone stile before heading in a south-
easterly direction across a haulage yard, then continuing in a generally south-
easterly direction until it meets the public bridleway numbered ECC\81. 

 
2.4 Over a number of years parts of this route have become overgrown, through 

lack of use, and have consequently become inaccessible. In addition some 
parts have been blocked by informal stopping-up, though no reports have 
been received from the public regarding these obstructions or the overgrown 
nature of parts of the route. Photos showing the route and the various 
obstructions are included as Appendix B. 
 

2.5 The alternative route along High Street and Picking Lane is shorter, well-lit, 
more open and generally more appealing to users. The alternative route is 
shown as a red-line on the plan included as Appendix C. 

 
 
3.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Consultations have been carried out with Statutory Undertakers (i.e. utility 

companies), the Emergency Services, and other relevant bodies, including 
footpath societies. 
 

Page 28



3.2 Not all the consultees had responded at the time of writing this report. But of 
those that have responded, no objections have been received. 
 

3.3 The Ramblers’ Association and Peak and Northern Footpath Society have 
responded positively to the proposal. 

 
3.4 If any negative comments relating to the application are received before the 

Planning and Highways Committee meeting, they will be reported verbally. 
 
 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Director of Legal & Governance has been consulted and has advised that 

if the Council was minded to agree to this application it would be appropriate 
to process the closure using the powers contained within Section 118 of the 
Highways Act 1980. These powers provide for a public footpath to be closed 
on the grounds that it is not needed for public use. 

 
 
5.0 HIGHWAY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The subject path ECC\80 is part of the definitive Public Rights of Way network 

in the Ecclesfield area of Sheffield. 
 

5.2 Footpath ECC\80 has been partially obstructed for several years, during 
which time no complaints have been received. 
  

5.3 The proposed closure should not adversely affect the public’s enjoyment of 
the area and will have no detrimental effect on the surrounding highway 
network and its users. 

 
 
6.0 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 No particular equal opportunity implications arise from the proposal in this 

report. 
 
 
7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 No particular environmental implications arise from the proposal in this report. 
 
 
8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 All the costs of the Closure Order application (in this case £3,150), and any 

other associated costs will be met from the Public Rights of Way maintenance 
budget.  
 

8.2 Once closed there will be no future maintenance liability to the PROW group. 
 

Page 29



9.0 CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 Based on the above information, the proposed closure of definitive public 

footpath ECC\80, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, is supported 
by Officers. 

 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Raise no objections to the proposed closure of definitive public footpath 

ECC\80, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, subject to satisfactory 
arrangements being made with Statutory Undertakers in connection with any 
of their mains and services that may be affected. 

 
10.2 Authority be given to the Director of Legal & Governance to 
 

c. take all necessary action to close the footpath under the powers contained 
within Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980; 

 
d. confirm the Order as an Unopposed Order, in the event of no objections 

being received, or any objections received being resolved. 
 

 
 

 
Philip Beecroft 
Head of Highway Maintenance                                                  23rd November 2017 

Page 30



Highway Records
Development Services
Howden House
Union Street
Sheffield
S1 2SH

435568.01:393709.1932

435670.0335:393658.3931

435537.1066:393806.5601

435567.5866:393835.7701
2

72

34
80

66 94 98

110

201

Scho
ol

Eppic

The Fighting Cock

CO
UR

T

Regency Court

Greyhound Inn

HA
NW

EL
L C

LO
SE

HILTON DRIVE

WOR
DS

WOR
TH

FERNLEA

HIGH STREET

RAWSONS BANK

PR
IMRO

SE
 DR

IVE

ST MICHAEL'S

MONTENEY ROAD

MONTENEY ROAD

±

0 30 6015
Metres

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 OS licence number 100018816. You are permitted to use this
data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Highways Act 1980
Section 118
Proposed Closure of footpath ECC\80

Scale: 1:2000

ECC\80

KEY
Footpath to be closed

Bridleway Not Affected

P
age 31

mr91038
Text Box
APPENDIX A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A

B

C
D

E

ECC\80

EC
C\

81

School

72

99

36

78
66 94

98

Rooms

110

11
6

Ball Inn

106

108 (PH)

TCB

Eppic

HA
NW

EL
L C

LO
SE

HIGH STREET

Shelter

111

11

112

60c

Library1 to
 7

16

107

60a

19

64

17

15

54

120

50

20

9

62

74

99b

30105

137

73

58

14

52

89

2
25

Depot

79.6m

84.7m

81.1m El Sub Sta

SD

Shelter

66

17

APPENDIX B

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 OS licence number 100018816. Use of this data
is subject to terms and conditions. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not
permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

A

B C

D E

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



ECC\80

EC
C\

81

4 2

8
7

Centre
Community

24

19

99

34
36

39

94
96

98

110

11
6

11
8

Ball Inn

201

106

108
120

FEOFFEES ROAD

(PH)

TCB

Eppic
Theatre

CO
UR

T

Regency Court

PARK CRESCENT

Greyhound Inn

DEARDEN

HA
NW

EL
L C

LO
SE

SCHOLES RISE

WELL L
ANE

HILTON DRIVE

HIGH STREET

SCHOLES VIEW

RAWSONS BANK

MARLFIELD CROFT

PR
IMRO

SE
 DR

IVE

Shelter

44 to 48

SYCAMORE ROAD

HALLAM WAY

111

11

112

60c

Library

to

5
51

83

1 to
 7

16

52

74

4 to
 26

99a

1 to 3

15

107

27 to 51

52 to 70

9 to 17

82

47

60a

64

17

1

28

10

67

32

69

101

3

26

76

93

37

6

49

95

54

50

103

42

20

105a

27

56

9

62

99b

30

53

71
2

105

137

45
43

70
7

66

41

58

14

89

25

60

LB

Depot

Pic
kin

g L
an

e

84.7m

79.6m

81.1m El Sub Sta

Un
d

FW

SD

SP

4

103

4

Und

2

15

(PH)

1

3

9

11

1

20

39

1

83

64

15

2

1
6

19

19

42

8

2

5

15

2

17

26

Shelter

11

1

11

52

1

2

28

42

APPENDIX C

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 OS licence number 100018816. Use of this data
is subject to terms and conditions. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not
permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

40 0 4020 Meters

High Street

FOOTPATH TO BE CLOSED
BRIDLEWAY ECC\81
ALTERNATIVE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of:   Director of Culture and Environment 
______________________________________________________________ 

Date:    5th December 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 

Subject:  

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118. PROPOSED CLOSURE OF PUBLIC 
FOOTPATH SHE\460 AT NORTON, SHEFFIELD 8 
______________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Mark Reeder 0114 2736125 
______________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

To seek authority to process the Public Path Closure Order required for closing the 
definitive public footpath SHE\460 between Hackthorn Road and Cherry Bank Road 
in the Norton area of Sheffield. 

______________________________________________________________ 

Reasons for Recommendations   

Based on the above information, the proposed closure of definitive public footpath 
SHE\460, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, is supported by Officers. 

Recommendations: 
Raise no objections to the proposed closure of definitive public footpath SHE\460, as 
shown on the plan included as Appendix A, subject to satisfactory arrangements 
being made with Statutory Undertakers in connection with any of their mains and 
services that may be affected. 

Authority be given to the Director of Legal and Governance to 

a. take all necessary action to close the footpath under the powers 
contained within Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980; 

b. confirm the Order as an Unopposed Order, in the event of no 
objections being received, or any objections received being 
resolved; 

______________________________________________________________ 
 

Background Papers: 
 

 

Category of Report: OPEN 
 

   

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning & Highways 

Committee 

Page 37

Agenda Item 10



DIRECTOR OF CULTURE AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
             REPORT TO PLANNING  

AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE  
5th December 2017 
 

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118. PROPOSED CLOSURE OF PUBLIC 
FOOTPATH SHE\460 AT NORTON, SHEFFIELD 8 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To seek authority to process the Public Path Closure Order required for 

closing the definitive public footpath SHE\460 between Hackthorn Road and 
Cherry Bank Road in the Norton area of Sheffield. 

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The City Council is making an application to close the footpath SHE\460, 

linking Hackthorn Road and Cherry Bank Road in the Norton area of 
Sheffield, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A. 
 

2.2 This application is on behalf of the City Council’s Principal Public Rights of 
Way Officer who contends that it is no longer required for public use and can 
be considered surplus to the requirements of the Highway Authority.  
 

2.3 Footpath SHE\460 has a recorded length of 25 yards and commences at 
Hackthorn Road, heading north between numbers 85 and 87 until it meets the 
unadopted part of Cherry Bank Road. 

 
2.4 During a site visit I was unable to find any physical or historical evidence 

showing the route of the path and concluded that it was probably informally 
extinguished some years ago by persons unknown. Photos attached as 
Appendix B show the location of the footpath. 

 
 
3.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Consultations have been carried out with Statutory Undertakers (i.e. utility 

companies), the Emergency Services, and other relevant bodies, including 
footpath societies. 
 

3.2 Not all the consultees had responded at the time of writing this report. But of 
those that have responded, no objections have been received. 
 

3.3 The Ramblers’ Association and Peak and Northern Footpath Society have 
responded positively to the proposal. 
 

Page 38



3.4 The affected residents of 85 and 87 Hackthorn Road have also been 
consulted and support this proposal. They are also aware that they may be 
required to reinstate the footpath should the application be unsuccessful. 
 

3.5 If any negative comments relating to the application are received before the 
Planning and Highways Committee meeting, they will be reported verbally. 

 
 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Director of Legal & Governance has been consulted and has advised that 

if the Council was minded to agree to this application it would be appropriate 
to process the closure using the powers contained within Section 118 of the 
Highways Act 1980. These powers provide for a public footpath to be closed 
on the grounds that it is not needed for public use. 

 
 
5.0 HIGHWAY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The subject path SHE\460 is part of the definitive public footpath network in 

the Norton area of Sheffield. 
 

5.2 Footpath SHE\460 has been informally extinguished for many years, during 
which time no complaints have been received. 
  

5.3 The proposed closure should not adversely affect the public’s enjoyment of 
the area and will have no detrimental effect on the surrounding highway 
network and its users. 

 
 
6.0 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 No particular equal opportunity implications arise from the proposal in this 

report. 
 
 
7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 No particular environmental implications arise from the proposal in this report. 
 
 
8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 All the costs of the Closure Order application (in this case £3,150), and any 

other associated costs will be met from the Public Rights of Way maintenance 
budget.  
 

8.2 Once closed there will be no future maintenance liability to the PROW group. 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 Based on the above information, the proposed closure of definitive public 

footpath SHE\460, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, is 
supported by Officers. 

 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Raise no objections to the proposed closure of definitive public footpath 

SHE\460, as shown on the plan included as Appendix A, subject to 
satisfactory arrangements being made with Statutory Undertakers in 
connection with any of their mains and services that may be affected. 

 
10.2 Authority be given to the Director of Legal & Governance to 
 

c. take all necessary action to close the footpath under the powers contained 
within Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980; 

 
d. confirm the Order as an Unopposed Order, in the event of no objections 

being received, or any objections received being resolved. 
 

 
 

 
Philip Beecroft 
Head of Highway Maintenance                                                  23rd November 2017 

Page 40



SHE\460

48
50

89 87

3

40 14

46

38

85

84

5

80

71

67

20

83

APPENDIX A

Highway Records
Highway Maintenance Division
Culture and Environment
Howden House
Union Street
Sheffield
S1 2SH 

¯

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 OS licence number 100018816. Use of this data
is subject to terms and conditions. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not
permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

10 0 105 Meters

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 118
PROPOSED CLOSURE OF FOOTPATH SHE\460 

BETWEEN HACKTHORN ROAD AND 
CHERRY BANK ROAD, WOODSEATS, SHEFFIELD

CHERRY BANK ROAD

HACKTHORN ROAD

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Exit at Cherry Bank 
Road

Entrance between 85 and 87 

Exit at Cherry Bank 
Road

Entrance between 85 and 87 

APPENDIX B

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

  
Report of:   Director of City Growth Service 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    05/12/2017 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Applications under various acts/regulations 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Lucy Bond 2734556 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
Reasons for Recommendations   
(Reports should include a statement of the reasons for the decisions proposed) 
 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning and Highways Committee 

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

Page 46



 

 

Application No. Location Page No. 
 

 

17/04213/FUL (Formerly PP-
06445249) 

The Wharncliffe Hotel 
127 Bevercotes Road Sheffield S5 6HB 

49 
 

 

17/03967/FUL (Formerly PP-
06402750) 

Crusty's 
86 Richmond Road Sheffield S13 8TA 

57 
 

 

17/01437/FUL (Formerly PP-
05948053) 

Site Of 1-11 Rotherham Place  
Orgreave Road Sheffield S13 

67 
 

 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 
Report Of The Head Of Planning 
To the Planning and Highways Committee 
Date Of Meeting: 05/12/2017 
 
LIST OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION OR INFORMATION 
 
*NOTE* Under the heading “Representations” a Brief Summary of Representations 
received up to a week before the Committee date is given (later representations 
will be reported verbally).  The main points only are given for ease of reference.  
The full letters are on the application file, which is available to members and the 
public and will be at the meeting. 
 
 
 

 
Case Number 

 
17/04213/FUL (Formerly PP-06445249) 
 

Application Type Full Planning Application 
 

Proposal Change of use of lower ground floor to boxing gym 
(Use Class D2 - Assembly and Leisure) (retrospective), 
demolition of existing porch and provision of 5 car 
parking spaces (Resubmission of application 
17/02077/FUL) 
 

Location The Wharncliffe Hotel 
127 Bevercotes Road 
Sheffield 
S5 6HB 
 

Date Received 09/10/2017 
 

Team City Centre and East 
 

Applicant/Agent Peacock And Smith Ltd 
 

Recommendation Refuse with Enforcement Action 
 

 
    
Refuse for the following reason(s): 
 
1 The Local Planning Authority considers that the retention of the gym within 

the basement of the building and the provison of replacement on site 
parking facilities for the existing residential development on the external 
periphery of the building which will be difficult, if not impractical to use will 
lead to an increase on-street parking in the vicinity of the site, which would 

Page 49



 

be detrimental to the safety of road users and, as such, contrary to Unitary 
Development Plan Policies H5 and H14 . 

  
 Furthermore the Local Planning Authority considers that the use of the 

replacement parking spaces would cause conflict between vehicles 
attemping to manoeuvre from the said parking spaces with pedestrians and 
other vehicles accessing the drive from Firth Park Crescent contrary to 
Unitary Development Policy S10. 

 
Attention is Drawn to the Following Directives: 
 
1. The applicant is advised that this application has been refused for the 

reasons stated above and taking the following plans into account:   
  
 Site Location Plan 
 Site plan J25-21-064 
 Basement floor plan J25-21 -060 
 Traffic Statement by VIA Solutions dated 6.10.2017 
 
2. The Head of Planning has been authorised to take all necessary steps, 

including enforcement action and the institution of legal proceedings, if 
necessary, to secure the cessation of the use of the boxing gym and the 
provison of basement car parking as approved by planning application 
16/00325/FUL.  The Local Planning Authority will be writing separately on 
this matter. 

 
3. Despite the Local Planning Authority wishing to work with the applicant in a 

positive and proactive manner, the application is considered contrary to 
policy requirement(s), and, there being no perceived amendment(s) that 
would address these shortcomings without compromising the fundamental 
intention of the scheme the Local Planning Authority had no alternative but 
to refuse consent. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

Site Location 
 
 
 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 10018816 
 
 
LOCATION AND PROPOSAL 
 
The application site relates to the former Wharncliffe Hotel public house, a large 
detached brick built property sited to the southern side of Bevercotes Road. The 
building which has recently been converted into two houses in multiple occupation 
with 20 bedrooms and shared facilities, also incorporates a large basement with 
direct access to a private drive leading onto Firth Park Crescent.  
 

Page 51



 

The building is located within the Firth Park District Shopping Centre. Land to the 
east is occupied by a vacant two storey building formerly in use as private garaging 
(with planning approval for conversion to a community centre) with vehicular 
access from both Bevercotes Road to the north and Firth Park Crescent to the 
south.  Both of these highways are essentially residential in character with a mix of 
semi-detached and terraced properties. 
 
Planning permission is sought for retrospective approval to convert the basement 
of the building into a boxing gym (Use class D2-Assembly and Leisure) and for the 
provision of 5 car parking spaces to the rear of the building. The boxing gym is 
accessed from a private drive to the rear of the building.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
15/03567/FUL Alterations to garages (on adjoining land) for use as a community 
centre GC 24.02.16.This permission has not yet been implemented. 
 
16/00325/FUL Alterations to building for use as two house in multiple occupation 
(20 bed spaces) and provision of basement parking GC 29.06.16  
 
Following complaints that the basement car parking area approved under 
application 16/00325/FUL had not been provided and was in use as a boxing gym 
the applicant was advised that he was in breach of his planning approval. 
Application 17/02077/FUL was subsequently submitted for the retrospective use of 
the ground floor as a boxing gym and the provision of four external car parking 
spaces. The application which was submitted against the advice of planning 
officers was refused on 17.08.17 due to concerns that the retention of the gym 
within the basement of the building and reduced parking facilities would lead to an 
increase in on street parking in the vicinity of the site to the detriment of the safety 
of road users. There were additional concerns that the use of the replacement 
parking provided on the external periphery of the building would be difficult if not 
impractical to use. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Although no letters of representation have been received in respect of this latest 
application it is noted that two objections were received in connection with the 
previous submission ref 17/02077/FUL and the council Enforcement Officer 
continues to receive complaints that the development is in breach of planning 
approval 16/00325/FUL.  
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT 
 
The current application is a resubmission of the planning application which was 
refused earlier this year. The applicant has however now demolished an existing 
porch within the proposed rear parking area which gave access to the basement of 
the building enabling an additional parking space to be provided on the periphery 
of the building. 
 

Page 52



 

The site lies within a designated District Shopping Centre. Policy S7 of the UDP 
lists leisure and recreation facilities (Use Class D2) as acceptable in principle in 
shopping areas subject to the provisions of Policy S10. The use of the upper floors 
of the building as two houses in multiple-occupation (20 bed spaces) has 
previously been accepted in principle by the earlier grant of planning approval 
subject to compliance with Policies S10 and H5. 
 
Highway Issues 
 
Policy S10 seeks to ensure that development provides safe access to the highway 
network, appropriate off street parking and does not endanger pedestrian safety.  
 
Policy H5 aims to ensure that there would be appropriate off road parking for the 
needs of people living there. 
 
Planning approval 16/00325/FUL was granted on condition that five off parking 
spaces were provided within the basement of the building for use by future 
occupiers. This relatively low level of parking (1 space per 4 bedrooms) was 
considered acceptable due to the sustainable location of the building, sited in close 
proximity to local facilities and transport links. At the time of this earlier application 
alternative parking layouts were discussed including a similar layout to that now 
proposed within the yard to the rear of the building. This was however dismissed 
as it was considered difficult if not impractical to use due to the limited space 
available. The approved parking layout within the basement of the building was 
considered to be the only suitable option without which the original application 
would not have been recommended for approval.  
 
In support of the current application the applicant has submitted a Traffic 
Statement (TS) which concludes that the application site falls within a sustainable 
location with a high number of facilities that can be accessed on foot and by cycle. 
The report considers that the parking impact of the proposed development is 
extremely low and that it can be accommodated on site or within the adjacent 
highway network without any detriment to highway safety or residential amenity. 
 
The TS indicates that all the approved 20 bed spaces are now occupied and states 
that, given the size and nature of the residential accommodation, it attracts low 
income residents who have no access to a car and confirms that none of the 
existing residents have a car. 
 
Notwithstanding the applicant’s statement that none of the residents have a car, 
the nature of the accommodation is likely to have a high turnover of occupants and 
in this respect it cannot be assumed that no residents in the future will have a car. 
At the time of the original application the applicant indicated that the 
accommodation may be let to nurses whom it is considered would, due to shift 
work, be more likely to have access to a vehicle rather than relying on public 
transport.  
The applicant has indicated that the boxing gym is used by between 40 and 60 
children each week with 95% living locally in the Firth Park area and therefore they 
are able to walk to the gym.  The other 5% live 10-15 mins away and use public 
transport.  The gym operates 7 days a week, 4 – 8pm Monday to Friday and 12 – 

Page 53



 

2pm on Saturday and Sunday, with the facility occasionally being open during the 
day from 11.00am for limited adult use. The Traffic Statement indicates that the 
current manager of the gym is a local resident who walks to the site and states that 
no parking will be provided for the existing boxing club. In this respect all the 5 
parking spaces which have been shown to be provided within the rear yard area 
will be available for the residential occupiers. 
 
Irrespective of the site’s location close to the Firth Park shopping centre and bus 
stops, your officers maintain that for the reasons outlined above, it is reasonable to 
require some usable parking spaces to be provided within the site curtilage for the 
residential accommodation and officers maintain that any parking spaces which are 
provided must be suitable for their intended purpose. Firth Park currently has 
extensive on-street parking problems with very few houses within the area having 
in curtilage parking facilities. Planning officers have visited the site on a number of 
occasions at varying times and have noted that both Firth Park Crescent and 
Bevercotes Road are heavily parked. Any increase in on street parking as a result 
of this development will exacerbate the situation and cannot be supported. Whilst 
the applicant has indicated that no parking is required for the gym; local residents 
have previously indicated that there are ongoing parking issues in the area and 
that the situation is made worse by parents dropping off children who use the gym.  
 
Whilst vehicle tracking information has been included within the Traffic Statement 
to show that the proposed spaces can be accessed officers are of the opinion that 
the parking spaces within the yard area will not be used as they are impractical for 
purpose. The tracking information assumes medium sized vehicles (4.3m in 
length), relies on all vehicles being parked tight up to the building and shows wheel 
tracks that in reality will not be achieved. The additional fifth parking space which is 
located in close proximity to the gated access to the community centre site creates 
an undesirable pinch point impacting on vehicular access to the car park to serve 
this neighbouring development. 
 
As the external area is so tight, it is most likely that vehicles will either end up 
reversing out of the site down the private access drive onto Firth Park Crescent or 
will carry out complex manoeuvres within the site boundary impacting on the safety 
of pedestrians who are accessing the boxing gym or community centre site.  
 
Amenity Issues 
 
It has previously been established that the approved residential use will not impact 
on the amenities of neighbouring residential occupiers. 
 
In respect of the boxing gym, Policy S10 seeks to ensure that development would 
not cause occupiers of nearby residential property to suffer unacceptable living 
conditions. 
 
The boxing gym is contained within the fabric of the existing building and only 
operates for limited hours throughout the week. This level of activity is unlikely to 
generate unreasonable disturbance to local residents who live on Firth Park 
Crescent whose properties are in excess of 18-20 metres away. In respect of 
residents within the upper part of the building it would be reasonable to require the 

Page 54



 

submission of a noise survey should the application be approved to identify if any 
remedial works are required to the dividing ceiling/floor structure. Likewise officers 
consider that no amplified music should be played in the building without 
appropriate sound insulation works and that the windows on the front elevation of 
the basement area should be non-opening. 
 
Design Issues 
 
Policy S10 requires new development to be well designed and to be of a scale and 
nature appropriate to the site. 
 
The windows to the basement gym have already been replaced with white UPVC 
frames. The applicant has previously demolished the porch and has part rendered 
the rear elevation. This part of the building however is not visible in general public 
view and the alterations do not impact on the character and appearance of the 
original building or locality.   
 
The demolition of the porch has exposed differences in external levels across the 
site which the applicant intends to regrade. This will ensure that level access is 
provided to the boxing gym and that the gradients around the fifth parking space 
are acceptable. A disability compliant access door to the gym will be installed if 
planning approval is granted. 
 
Other Issues 
 
The applicant has indicated that the boxing gym is a much needed local facility 
within this deprived area and draws attention to the NPPF requiring the planning 
system to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities by, amongst other 
things, accessible local services that reflect the community’s needs and support its 
health, social and cultural well –being.  The applicant considers that the overall 
benefits that will arise by the provision of this community facility for children living in 
a deprived neighbourhood will significantly outweigh any limited negative impacts 
that may arise from on street car parking. The applicant has also forwarded a copy 
of the Firth Park Community Awards Certificate recently awarded to the boxing 
gym by the Firth Park Ward Councillors and indicates that this provides evidence 
that the council supports the facility. 
 
Whilst the use of the basement as a gym for youngsters in the area is a material 
consideration in the determination of this application it is noted that the basement 
was vacant at the time of the original application. The applicant was at this time 
aware that planning approval was dependent on this space being used as a car 
park for future residents and amended the plans accordingly. For the boxing gym 
to open in the basement within such a short time after planning approval was 
granted shows a complete disregard for planning policy and requirements. It is 
clear to officers that there was never any intention to use this space as agreed and 
had the applicant been upfront about his intentions this could have been 
considered as part of the original proposal. Whilst sympathetic to the needs of the 
local community, the club is shown to be thriving and would most likely be able to 
secure alterative, more appropriate facilities within the local area.  
 

Page 55



 

Prior to the 2016 approval the existing building and associated land to the rear 
were subject to ongoing anti-social behaviour. The situation was made worse as 
the site is hidden from public view and was easily accessible from both Bevercotes 
Road and Firth Park Crescent. As part of the conversion works the site has been 
made secure with 2m high gates to the rear access drive and security railings 
along the Bevercotes Road frontage. Residents are understood to have a key to 
open the security gates should they need to park a vehicle within the site curtilage. 
The owner of the adjoining garages also has access rights across the applicant’s 
land and intends to utilise the existing private drive as access to the car park 
serving the community centre.  
 
Enforcement 
 
As this is a retrospective application, authority is sought to take any necessary 
Enforcement Action including legal action to ensure the use of the basement as a 
boxing gym ceases and the use reverts to car parking in conjunction with the use 
of the upper floors as two houses in multiple occupation. 
 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed use of the building as two HiMOs has previously been approved 
subject to the provision of 5 car parking spaces within the basement of the building. 
There are concerns that the loss of this car parking together with the introduction of 
a boxing gym will ultimately lead to an increase in on street parking on both Firth 
Park Crescent and Bevercotes Road. The replacement five car parking spaces to 
the rear of the building are considered difficult if not impractical to use and are not 
a suitable replacement to those lost from within the building. The proposal also 
raises pedestrian safety concerns due to the potential for vehicles reversing out of 
the site along the private access track or carrying out complex manoeuvring to turn 
a vehicle round in the limited space available.  
 
For the reasons outlined the proposal is considered contrary to approved policy 
and is recommended for refusal. 
 

Page 56



 

 
 

 
Case Number 

 
17/03967/FUL (Formerly PP-06402750) 
 

Application Type Full Planning Application 
 

Proposal Use of building as a 7-bed House in Multiple 
Occupation (HMO) (Use Class Sui Generis) 
 

Location Crusty's 
86 Richmond Road 
Sheffield 
S13 8TA 
 

Date Received 21/09/2017 
 

Team City Centre and East 
 

Applicant/Agent Mr Andrew Pickup 
 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 

 
  
Time limit for Commencement of Development 
 
 1. The development shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country 

Planning Act. 
 
Approved/Refused Plan(s) 
 
 2. The development must be carried out in complete accordance with the 

following approved documents:  
  
 Location Plan 
 17004-201 D - Site plan, plans and elevations 
 Useable loft floorspace plan - emailed on 19.11.17 
  
 Reason:  In order to define the permission. 
 
 
Pre Commencement Condition(s) – (‘true conditions precedent’ – see notes 
for definition) 
 
 
 

Page 57



 

Other Pre-Commencement, Pre-Occupancy and other Stage of Development 
Condition(s) 
 
 
 3. The building shall not be used unless the car parking accommodation as 

shown on the approved plans has been provided in accordance with those 
plans and thereafter such car parking accommodation shall be retained for 
the sole purpose intended.  

  
 Reason:  To ensure satisfactory parking provision in the interests of traffic 

safety and the amenities of the locality. 
 
 4. Prior to the use commencing, details of the design of the new stone garden 

wall to Richmond Road and Laverack Street along with improvements to the 
existing stone wall to Richmond Road shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The new stone wall and improvements to the 
existing stone wall shall be implemented before the use commences and 
thereafter permanently retained. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
 5. A comprehensive and detailed hard and soft landscape scheme for the site 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before the development is commenced, or within an alternative timeframe to 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
 6. The approved landscape works shall be implemented prior to the 

development being brought into use or within an alternative timescale to be 
first approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the 
landscaped areas shall be retained and they shall be cultivated and 
maintained for a period of 5 years from the date of implementation and any 
plant failures within that 5 year period shall be replaced. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
Other Compliance Conditions 
 
 7. The gradient of shared pedestrian/vehicular access shall not exceed 1:12 . 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of the safety of road users. 
 
 8. Stone/brickwork/slate to be used in the reinstatement to the existing 

property and the stone to be used in the new and improved stone garden 
boundary wall shall match existing. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
     
 

Page 58



 

Attention is Drawn to the Following Directives: 
 
1. The boundary wall should be set back behind the highway boundary, the 

parking area should be designed to avoid surface water spilling on to the 
highway. 

 
2. It is noted that your planning application involves the construction or 

alteration of an access crossing to a highway maintained at public expense. 
  
 This planning permission DOES NOT automatically permit the layout or 

construction of the access crossing in question, this being a matter which is 
covered by Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980. You should apply for 
permission, quoting your planning permission reference number, by 
contacting: 

  
 Ms D Jones 
 Highways Development Management 
 Highways Maintenance Division 
 Howden House, 1 Union Street  
 Sheffield  
 S1 2SH 
  
 Tel: (0114) 273 6136 
 Email: dawn.jones@sheffield.gov.uk 
 
3. You are required, as part of this development, to carry out works within the 

public highway.  You must not start any of this work until you have received 
formal permission under the Highways Act 1980 in the form of an S278 
Agreement. Highway Authority and Inspection fees will be payable and a 
Bond of Surety required as part of the S278 Agreement. 

  
 You should contact the S278 Officer for details of how to progress the S278 

Agreement: 
  
 Mr J Burdett 
 Highways Development Management 
 Highways Maintenance Division 
 Howden House, 1 Union Street  
 Sheffield  
 S1 2SH 
  
 Tel: (0114) 273 6349 
 Email: james.burdett@sheffield.gov.uk 
 
4. You are required as part of this development, to carry out works within the 

public highway: as part of the requirements of the New Roads and Street 
Works Act 1991 (Section 54), 3rd edition of the Code of Practice 2007, you 
must give at least three months written notice to the Council, informing us of 
the date and extent of works you propose to undertake. 

  

Page 59



 

 The notice should be sent to:- 
  
 Highway Co-Ordination 
 Sheffield City Council 
 Town Hall 
 Sheffield 
 S1 2HH 
  
 Telephone: 0114 273 6677  
 Email: highways@sheffield.gov.uk 
  
 Please note failure to give the appropriate notice may lead to a fixed penalty 

notice being issued and any works on the highway being suspended. 
  
 Where the notice is required as part of S278 or S38 works, the notice will be 

submitted by Highways Development Management. 
 
5. The applicant is advised that Sheffield City Council, as Highway Authority, 

require that drives/vehicular access points be designed to prevent loose 
gravel or chippings from being carried onto the footway or carriageway, and 
that they drain away from the footway or carriageway, to prevent damage or 
injury. 

 
6. As the proposed development abuts the public highway you are advised to 

contact the Highways Co-ordination Group prior to commencing works: 
  
 Telephone: 0114 273 6677 
 Email: highways@sheffield.gov.uk 
  
 They will be able to advise you of any pre-commencement condition 

surveys, permits, permissions or licences you may require in order to carry 
out your works. 

 
7. By law, this development requires the allocation of official, registered 

address(es) by the Council's Street Naming and Numbering Officer. Please 
refer to the Street Naming and Numbering Guidelines and application forms 
on the Council website here: 

  
 http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/roads-pavements/Address-management 
  
 For further help and advice please ring 0114 2736127 or email 

snn@sheffield.gov.uk.  
  
 Please be aware that failure to apply for addresses at the commencement of 

the works will result in the refusal of statutory undertakers to lay/connect 
services, delays in finding the premises in the event of an emergency and 
legal difficulties when selling or letting the properties. 

 
8. The Local Planning Authority has dealt with the planning application in a 

positive and proactive manner and sought solutions to problems where 

Page 60



 

necessary in accordance with the requirements of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 

Site Location 
 
 
 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 10018816 
 
 
LOCATION AND PROPOSAL 
 
The application site is located at the corner of Laverack Street and Richmond 
Road.  The surrounding area is residential in character although there is a local 
shopping parade approximately 90m to the east of the site on the opposite side of 
Richmond Road.  The surrounding residential properties are a mixture of terraced, 
semi-detached houses  and purpose built flats many of which do not have off road 
parking. 
 

Page 62



 

The application property is a terraced stone faced 2 storey building which is 
attached to dwelling houses on the east side with a small garden at the rear on the 
Laverack Street frontage. The ground floor of the premises was last used as a 
sandwich shop/takeaway.   
 
The existing plans show three rooms on the ground floor comprising of café 
serving area, café seating and café prep area.  At first floor there is 1 bedroom, a 
kitchen lounge and small bathroom and two further bedrooms in the loft space 
served by velux windows. 
 
The proposed layout is for 2 bedrooms and a shared kitchen/living room space on 
the ground floor, three bedrooms on the first floor with shared toilet and shower 
and 2 bedrooms in the loft space with shared toilet and shower. 
 
An existing shop window on the Richmond Road frontage is to be reinstated as a 
domestic style window with matching stone infill.  A small off shot at the rear is to 
be removed and a door is to be blocked up with matching brickwork.  Three 
existing velux windows are to be replaced with larger velux windows.  Since the 
application was originally submitted the layout has been amended to provide 2 car 
parking spaces in the rear garden, accessed off Laverack Street.  The kitchen 
living space has been moved to the ground floor at the rear and the applicant has 
confirmed that he will reinstate a low stone wall to incorporate the open forecourt 
around the former shop area. 
 
The applicant has provided additional information in support of his application.  He 
has stated that he understands residents’ concerns that HMOs may be seen as 
attracting undesirable tenants.  The applicant has stated that he intends to fit out 
the property to a high standard and this will affect the type of tenants attracted; his 
intention is that the premises will serve employed professional people, particularly 
targeted at workers from the advanced manufacturing park.  The property is 
designed to be affordable housing for people who are either unable to afford the 
rents and deposits of renting out a larger property by themselves or who are saving 
up to get onto the property ladder.  The applicant has stated that he finds that a 
large percentage of tenants in similar properties are not car owners, preferring to 
use public transport to save costs.  The applicant has pointed out the site’s access 
to good public transport services and local amenities and the provision of some off 
street parking within the site. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Immediate neighbours were notified and a site notice displayed on the frontage. 
 
Eleven objections have been received. 
 
The grounds of objection are as follows; 
 

- Insufficient parking in an area that is heavily parked. Parking already takes 

place on the pavement, on yellow lines and at the bus stop which causes 

congestion at peak times. 

Page 63



 

- The property may be used for community housing or a halfway house and 

may attract undesirables or noisy people, which could increase crime and 

affect the safety of residents living nearby.  Youths already congregate on 

the corner of this building and the police already have a problem in this 

area. 

- A HIMO is not suited to the area which is primarily family housing, couples 

and retired residents. 

- The building work will cause noise, dust pollution and add to traffic 

- The property is not large enough for 7-14 people; they would congregate 

outside in the summer months causing noise and disturbance for residents. 

- The application form has been filed in inaccurately as it says there would be 

no gain or loss of residential units 

- More residents should have been notified. 

 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT 
 
Policy 
 
The application site lies within a Housing Policy Area as identified in the Unitary 
Development Plan.  Policy H10 says housing (C3) is the preferred use. Larger 
HiMO’s are uses that do not fall within any use class and are not referred to 
specifically in the policy.  Uses not listed in the policy will be decided on their 
individual merits. 
 
Core Strategy Policy CS 41 is concerned with creating mixed communities.  The 
policy seeks to promote housing that will meet a range of needs.  Part d of the 
policy seeks to limit conversions to HiMO’s or other shared accommodation where 
the community is already imbalanced by a concentration of such uses or the 
development would create imbalance.  The commentary on the policy says that 
this will be achieved by limiting shared housing where more than 20% of 
residences within 200m of the application site are shared housing.  In this case the 
percentage of shared housing is low at only 1% and therefore there is no policy 
reason to resist the application. 
 
Amenity Impact 
 
There is the potential for a HiMO to cause dis-amenity to adjoining residents due to 
increased comings and goings and due to intensive use of amenity space.  
Perceptions about the type of resident are not a reason for resisting an application.  
This is because there is no evidence to know with any certainty what type of 
residents will occupy the property and this is no different to a dwelling house where 
the potential type of resident is irrelevant.  The planning system is not designed to 
control the type of people who will occupy a residential property which means that 

Page 64



 

Members should give little weight to the applicant’s assertions that occupiers are 
likely to be employed professionals. 
 
A HIMO of this size will require licencing by the Council’s Private Sector Housing 
section.  Through this process there are controls over the size of rooms, number of 
facilities such as toilets and number of people who can be resident.  It is not for the 
planning authority to duplicate these controls.  The HiMO standards indicate that 
only one of the rooms would be of a suitable size for occupation by 2 people.  This 
indicates that up to 8 people could reside in the premises. 
 
The application site is located at a junction between two quite busy roads.  The 
ground floor was also last used as a sandwich shop / takeaway. There is the 
potential for a significant number of movements to be attracted to food and drink 
uses.  Sandwich shop/Takeaways can also be a source of dis-amenity for local 
residents due to noisy customers congregating around premises, car parking and 
odours. 
 
Given the last use of the premises for a café/takeaway on the ground floor and 
residential accommodation above sufficient for a family of 4, it is considered that 
the proposed use would not be likely to generate significantly more activity or 
noise.  Much of the amenity space associated with the premises is exposed to the 
road frontages and most of the small rear garden will be given over to car parking.  
This is not ideal in terms of providing a usable amenity area for the occupiers of the 
premises.  However it is not considered to be sufficient to justify resisting the 
application.  The character and narrowness of the amenity space suggests in 
would be unlikely to be frequently used by the occupiers which means that it would 
be unlikely to be more of a source of disturbance to local residents than any other 
garden space. 
 
Two of the ground floor bedrooms are positioned on the main road frontages.  
Officers have sought to persuade the applicant to locate the less sensitive 
kitchen/living space on the main road frontage but the applicant has declined to do 
so.  Given that the stone boundary wall will provide defensible space around the 
ground floor frontage there is no strong case for opposing the application on this 
basis.  
 
Access Issues 
 
There is bus stop opposite the site on Richmond Road and a high frequency 
service on Handsworth Road approximately 350m from the site.  There is a 
convenience shop in the local parade opposite the site on Richmond Road and 
further local shops and takeaways on Handsworth Road within walking distance of 
the site. The site is considered to be well served by public transport and local 
services.  
 
There are many properties around the site which do not have off street parking and 
consequently there is significant on street parking within the surrounding area.  The 
applicant has offered to provide 3 parking spaces in the rear garden.  Your officers 
consider that 3 spaces would create a long run of parking which would have a 
significant negative impact on the street scene and a long dropped crossing is also 

Page 65



 

not desirable for pedestrians.  As a result officers have negotiated a scheme with 2 
off street parking spaces which is considered to strike a reasonable balance 
between protecting visual and pedestrian amenity and making provision for 
parking.  
 
The site is well served by public transport and local shops and residents of this 
type of accommodation are less likely to be car owners. Given this and the 
potential for greater parking demand to be generated by the existing ground floor 
commercial use it is considered that the proposal represents an improvement in 
parking terms over the existing use and the level of off street parking provision is 
acceptable. 
 
Design 
 
The alterations to the shop window are in keeping with the character of the building 
and locality.  The new stone boundary wall will help define the curtilage and reduce 
the impact of the large area of tarmac on the building frontages, which will have a 
beneficial impact. The off street car parking will have a minor harmful visual impact 
but this is considered to be outweighed by the benefits of improvements to the 
boundary wall to other parts of the frontage. 
 
RESPONSE TO REPRESENTATIONS  
 
Disturbance due to building works is likely to be temporary and not significantly 
different from that associated with a domestic extension.   
 
There is no evidence to support a case that the proposal will result in increased 
crime. 
 
Immediate neighbours were notified and site notice displayed outside the premises 
which is sufficient to meet the Council’s statement of Community Involvement 
 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
Given the existing commercial use of the ground floor and the sustainable location 
of the site it is considered that the proposal will not have a significant adverse 
impact on residential amenity or highway safety.  The parking provision is 
considered to be satisfactory taking into account the above issues and the 
development should result in visual amenity benefit. 
 
The proposal will provide much needed residential accommodation and therefore 
the proposal is acceptable in policy terms when considered on its merits.  
Therefore it is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the 
listed conditions. 

Page 66



 

 
 

 
Case Number 

 
17/01437/FUL (Formerly PP-05948053) 
 

Application Type Full Planning Application 
 

Proposal Development of a 20MW Synchronous Gas Standby 
Power Generation Facility, including ancillary 
infrastructure and equipment 
 

Location Site Of 1-11 Rotherham Place 
Orgreave Road 
Sheffield 
S13 
 

Date Received 05/04/2017 
 

Team City Centre and East 
 

Applicant/Agent Enzygo Ltd 
 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 

 
  
Time limit for Commencement of Development 
 
 1. The development shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason:  In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country 

Planning Act. 
 
Approved/Refused Plan(s) 
 
 2. The development must be carried out in complete accordance with the 

following approved documents:  
  
 Drawing Numbers: 
 CRM.336.003.l.D.001 Landscape Strategy (October 2017) 
 CRM.336.003.PL.D.004 Site Elevations (March 2017) 
 CRM.336.003.PL.D.003.A Site Layout (excluding landscaping) (March 2017) 
 CRM.336.003.PL.D.002 Site Plan 
  
 Reports: 
 Noise Assessment CRM.336.003.NO.R.001 (March 2017) 
 Phase 1 Preliminary Risk Assessment and Coal Mining Assessment 

CRM.336.003.GE.R.001.B (September 2017) 
 Reptile Survey CRM.336.003.EC.R.003 (19 September 2017) 

Page 67



 

 Bat Activity CRM.336.003.EC.R.002 (19 September 2017) 
 Visibilty Appraisal CRM.336.003.L.R.001 (October 2017) 
  
  
  
 Reason:  In order to define the permission 
 
 
Pre Commencement Condition(s) – (‘true conditions precedent’ – see notes 
for definition) 
 
 
 
Other Pre-Commencement, Pre-Occupancy and other Stage of Development 
Condition(s) 
 
 
 3. Site clearance works shall be carried out outside the bird breeding season 

and under a Precautionary Working Method Statement (PWMS), with 
checks made by an Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW), due to the presence 
locally of several waterbodies that support great crested newt. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of species protection 
 
 4. The approved landscaping strategy shall be implemented prior to the first 

operation of the plant. Thereafter the landscaped areas shall be retained 
and they shall be cultivated and maintained for a period of 5 years from the 
date of implementation and any plant failures within that 5 year period shall 
be replaced. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of providing appropriate screening for the 

development and to improve biodiversity. 
 
 5. Before the use of the power generation facility is commenced (except for 

testing to meet the terms of this condition), Validation Testing of the sound 
attenuation works shall have been carried out and the results submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  Such Validation Testing 
shall: 

  a) Be carried out in accordance with an approved method statement. 
  b) Demonstrate that the background noise levels in the Noise Assessment 

have been achieved at the nearest noise sensitive receptors.  In the event 
that the specified noise levels have not been achieved then, notwithstanding 
the sound attenuation works thus far approved, a further scheme of sound 
attenuation works capable of achieving the specified noise levels and 
recommended by an acoustic consultant shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority before the operational use of the 
development is commenced.  Such further scheme of works shall be 
installed as approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
operational use is commenced and shall thereafter be retained. 

   

Page 68



 

 Reason:  In order to protect the living conditions of nearby residents 
 
Other Compliance Conditions 
 
 6. The power generation facility shall only ever operate between 0700 hours 

and 2300 hours and shall never run overnight. 
   
 Reason: In the interests of the living conditions of nearby residents. 
 
 7. The plant shall operate for a maximum of 1,500 hours in any single calendar 

year 
   
 Reason: In the interests of local air quality 
 
 8. No demolition and / or construction works shall be carried out unless 

equipment is provided for the effective cleaning of the wheels and bodies of 
vehicles leaving the site so as to prevent the depositing of mud and waste 
on the highway. 

   
 Reason:  In the interests of the safety of road users. 
  
     
 
Attention is Drawn to the Following Directives: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has dealt with the planning application in a 

positive and proactive manner and sought solutions to problems where 
necessary in accordance with the requirements of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
2. The developer is advised that in the event that any un-natural ground or 

unexpected contamination is encountered at any stage of the development 
process, the Local Planning Authority should be notified immediately. This 
will enable consultation with the Environmental Protection Service to ensure 
that the site is developed appropriately for its intended use. Any necessary 
remedial measures will need to be identified and subsequently agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
3. The applicant is advised that noise and vibration from demolition and 

construction sites can be controlled by Sheffield City Council under Section 
60 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. As a general rule, where residential 
occupiers are likely to be affected, it is expected that noisy works of 
demolition and construction will be carried out during normal working hours, 
i.e. 0800 to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, and 0800 to 1300 hours on 
Saturdays with no working on Sundays or Public Holidays. Further advice, 
including a copy of the Council's Code of Practice for Minimising Nuisance 
from Construction and Demolition Sites is available from the Environmental 
Protection Service, Howden House, Union Street, Sheffield, S1 2SH, tel. 
0114 2734651. 

 

Page 69



 

4. The applicant should install any external lighting to the site to meet the 
guidance provided by the Institution of Lighting Professionals in their 
document GN01: 2011 "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive 
Light".  This is to prevent lighting causing disamenity to neighbours.  The 
Guidance Notes are available for free download from the 'resource' pages of 
the Institute of Lighting Professionals' website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 

Site Location 
 
 
 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 10018816 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Members will recall that this application was withdrawn from a previous agenda 
before consideration as the applicant wanted to be given the opportunity to 
address the concerns of officers raised in the original report that was published at 
that time. This report has been revised to incorporate the changes that have been 
made since that time. 
 
 

Page 71



 

 
LOCATION AND PROPOSAL 
 
This application seeks permission for a 20MW synchronous gas powered standby 
generation facility and ancillary infrastructure and equipment. The purpose of the 
plant is to generate electricity at short notice to meet peaks in demand within the 
local electricity network. This typically happens when existing or established 
sources of generation are unable to generate sufficient electricity, or when there 
are short periods of exceptionally high demand that cannot be met from existing 
sources. At such times these plants will be activated at short notice to manage 
such fluctuation in demand and supply. Similar plants are sometimes known as 
Short Term Operating Reserve (STOR) generation plants or Standby Power 
Generation Plants. 
 
The site is located on the Orgreave industrial estate. The site is currently vacant 
and is covered in scrub but has some hardstanding areas associated with a 
previous use of the site. The southern and western boundaries of the site have a 
deciduous tree screen, although there are gaps within it. The site is at the edge of 
the industrial estate at the junction of Rotherham Road with Orgreave Road. 
Existing industrial premises are situated to the east of the site and across Orgreave 
Road to the south. In close proximity to the west of the site on the opposite side of 
Rotherham Road are semi-detached houses. To the north is another area of 
vacant scrub land within the industrial estate. 
 
The proposal seeks to form an access road from Orgreave Drive, utilising the 
existing vehicular access which already exists and to install the generating plant on 
the eastern portion of the site. The development would consist of eight free-
standing gas fired engines with exhaust chimneys, together with some other free 
standing equipment including a transformer and a switch room. The area of the site 
where the installation is proposed would also be contained by a 2.4m high mesh 
panel fence. A landscaping strategy has been produced to show how the plant 
would be screened with significant additional new planting. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
There is no relevant planning history in relation to this site. 
 
An application for another similar installation of a 20MW facility proposed by 
another company on a site to the north east of this proposal, within the same 
industrial estate has previously been approved by this Committee (application 
number 17/01901/FUL refers). 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue have been consulted on the proposals and raise 
no objections. 
 
The Health and Safety Executive has confirmed that the site does not lie within 
their consultation distance of a major hazard site or major accident pipeline and as 
such they are not required to be consulted in this case. 

Page 72



 

 
Yorkshire Water has not objected to the development but has requested a 
condition to secure the agreement of the surface water drainage works prior to the 
development commencing. 
 
More than 100 representations have been received in connection with this 
application. One of the representations is in support of the application; three 
provide a neutral comment and the remainder object to the scheme. The objectors 
include Councillors Mick Rooney and Paul Wood.  
 
The supporter of the scheme states that as a peak power standby site, money and 
jobs will be created for a site that will hardly run. The emissions levels will be 
comparable to that of Highfield Spring at 28mg/nm3 so there will be negligible air 
pollution changes. The site can also be completely hidden by new plants and 
bushes 
 
The objections can be summarised as follows: 
 

- Lack of public consultation about the proposal – the applicant should 
arrange a public meeting 

- Air quality concerns, particularly in relation to young children – emission of 
Nitrogen Oxides and particulates which will affect health – Public Health 
England state that Nitrogen Dioxide has an adverse effects on health and 
reduced life expectancy and is associated with hospital admissions for 
numerous respiratory conditions 

- The supporting air quality and environmental reports are all hypothetical and 
not based on an actual completed facility 

- Further noise pollution on an already busy and noisy road, especially during 
the construction period 

- The development will result in nasty odours from the gas emissions 
- Proximity to residential properties, workplaces and schools, including the 

new Waverley development which is a new residential community close to 
the site 

- Impact on ecological diversity of the area and effect on the Waverley public 
open space.  

- The Dore House site is particularly rich in various butterfly species, many of 
which are readily apparent on the site itself and which visit our gardens, 
directly opposite. From this it is deduced that the Dore House site is the 
breeding ground for these species, and its development would likely result in 
the loss of these insects. 

- There are multiple butterfly and moth species, many of which are in decline 
nationally. Several of them have highly localised distributions, breeding 
within small isolated sites, and so the impact of the loss of these can be 
more dramatic than one might expect. 

- Several notable insects from other families have been recorded, particularly 
long horned beetles and true flies. The soldier fly and the long-horned beetle 
are extremely scarce, and these are highly notable records. They are also 
very large, dramatic and showy insects, and it would be a great shame not 
to see them again. 

Page 73



 

- Understand that the site will need redevelopment at some stage, but 
together with other proposed developments in the area, the impact as a 
whole on the diversity of sites, their proximity to each other and the effects 
of these combined will be extremely detrimental to the air quality and hence 
to the soil nutrient concentrations, and affect the availability of alternative 
food plants for these species and disrupt the entire ecosystem of the area. 
The site could be redeveloped less aggressively and more sympathetically 
so that the area is affected more gradually, giving wildlife a better chance of 
adjusting. 

- There is too much reliance on fossil fuels – there should be a push away 
from this due to issues of climate change and renewable alternatives should 
be explored 

- Decrease in property values (NB - this is not a planning consideration) 
- Health and safety concerns in respect of fire and rescue 
- Given that the land has been vacant for years why not build low cost 

housing? 
- The proposal will lead to an increase in traffic in an already congested area 
- Adverse impact on the surrounding environment and the abundance of local 

wildlife. The site is close to a site of local beauty and nature reserve. 
- This development goes against the eco-friendly credentials of Waverley and 

the AMRC development 
- There must be other better located industrial estates that would be more 

suited to this development. 
- The landscaped boundary referred to in the proposal is actually just a single 

row of trees with a large gap that will do little to screen the proposals, 
particularly during the winter months. 

 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT 
 
Land Use Policy  
 
Within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) there is a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development and a requirement to approve developments 
that accord with the provisions of the development plan. It goes on to say that 
where policies are out of date permission should be granted unless the dis-benefits 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the development. National Planning Practice 
Guidance indicates that it is important to ensure the delivery of energy 
infrastructure that will support the transition to low carbon energy sources provided 
that the environmental impacts of doing so are acceptable. The NPPF also clearly 
supports the need for economic growth. The basis for a standby power generation 
facility is to ensure stability of energy supply which is critical to sustaining a 
growing economy. 
 
The NPPF also recognises that in building a stronger economy there are important 
social and environmental roles such that the planning system should support 
strong vibrant and healthy communities and should contribute to protecting the 
environment, including by minimising pollution and enhancing the built 
environment. 
 

Page 74



 

The part of the site which is proposed to be developed is within an allocated 
General Industry Area as defined in the adopted Sheffield Unitary Development 
Plan. The western third of the site is designated as an Open Space Policy Area. No 
development is proposed in this area. Rotherham Road and the housing beyond it 
to the west are within a designated Housing Policy Area. 
 
Policy IB5 identifies general industrial uses (use class B2) as the preferred uses of 
land in the general industry policy area. The proposed power station is a sui 
generis use (in a class of its own) and as such in accordance with Policy IB5 must 
be considered on its own merits. A power station is industrial in character and as 
such is considered compatible with the other established industrial uses on this 
small industrial estate. As such the land use principle of the use of the site as a 
power station is considered acceptable and accords with Policy IB5. However, the 
proposal must be assessed against a range of considerations, not least of which is 
the proximity of the site to housing. 
 
Open Space Policy 
 
The western third of the site is designated as an Open Space Policy Area. This 
designation is to ensure the retention of an environmental buffer between the 
Industrial Estate and the housing area to the west.  Given that no development is 
proposed in this area the proposal is not contrary to Open Space policy. 
 
Design and appearance  
 
The NPPF states that permission should be refused for development of poor 
design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and 
quality of an area. It recognises that good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development and should contribute positively to making places better for people. 
 
Policy IB9 part c) requires development to be well designed with buildings and 
storage of a scale and nature appropriate to the site. Policy CS74 expects high 
quality development which contributes towards creating attractive, sustainable and 
successful neighbourhoods. 
 
The development comprises of eight gas fired engine-driven electricity generation 
units constructed in two rows which will be housed in acoustically insulated 
weather proof steel containers. The engine-generator sets will sit side-by-side 
within the compound each in its own sound-proof containment cell. Additional 
ancillary plant will also be accommodated within the site. The height of the engine 
containers, including the stack on top will be 6.7 metres from ground level. The site 
is proposed to be enclosed by a 2.4m high mesh panel fence and there will be 
motion sensor security lighting and 24/7 CCTV coverage. The existing trees and 
bushes to the south and west boundaries would be retained and supplemented by 
additional landscaping in the form of a woodland planting mix on the remaining 
open areas of the site; a native species hedgerow to the northern boundary and 
part of the southern boundary; supplementing the existing tree planting with 
understorey planting; and a native species hedgerow around the proposed 
equipment perimeter fence line (which is inset from the site boundary). 
 

Page 75



 

It is considered that design is a particularly important consideration with this 
proposal on this site given that it lies at the very edge of the industrial estate and is 
in very close proximity to an established residential area. 
 
Given the nature of the development there is no denying that the equipment 
enclosure and equipment itself will not represent good design. It is essentially a 
proposal for open storage of industrial plant and equipment and it has no 
redeeming features that will enhance the appearance of the area. The fact that this 
site is at one of the main entrances to the site and is so close to residential 
property makes this a particularly relevant issue in this case. 
 
Whilst there are trees lining the Rotherham Road and Orgreave Road frontages 
these are deciduous trees that will not be in leaf for nearly half of the year. This 
means that their screening value over the late autumn, winter and early spring 
months will be minimal, exposing considerable views of the plant and equipment to 
residents on Rotherham Road and adversely affecting their outlook. For these 
reasons the applicant has responded to your officers concerns on this point by 
submitting a visibility appraisal of the current situation and a landscape strategy to 
assist with the screening of the plant and equipment and to enhance the 
biodiversity of the site. 
 
Your officers had previously expressed concerns that the proposal as originally 
submitted would result in a poor visual appearance at the entrance to the industrial 
estate as well as adversely affecting the outlook of nearby residents. However, the 
proposed landscape strategy provides for a comprehensive woodland planting 
scheme that would vastly improve the screening of the plant and significantly 
improve outlook for the residents opposite the site. 
 
On the basis of the revised proposals it is now considered that the proposal meets 
the aims of Policies IB9 and CS74 as well as the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Ecology 
 
Policy GE11 of the UDP states that the natural environment will be protected and 
enhanced. 
 
A preliminary ecological appraisal (dated 30 March 2017) was submitted with the 
application. This has subsequently been supplemented by a Bat Survey and a 
Reptile Survey (both dated 19th September) following a review of the original 
appraisal by the City Council’s Ecology Service. 
 
The further survey work has revealed that there are no bat roosts on the site, 
although there is some limited bat activity after dusk as occasional bats cross or 
visit the site. The reptile survey found no reptiles on site. 
 
On the basis of the additional fieldwork carried out there is considered to be no 
reason to resist the proposal on ecological grounds, subject to appropriate 
conditions to ensure that site clearance is outside the bird breeding season and a 
precautionary working method statement supervised by an ecologist.  

Page 76



 

 
The landscape strategy that has been submitted in response to officers concerns 
about the screening of the plant will perform the dual role of screening and 
biodiversity enhancement, which is to be welcomed. 
 
The development is therefore considered to comply with Policy GE11. 
 
Highways 
 
The applicant has advised that staff will only visit the site on an ad hoc basis and 
there is a significant amount of circulation space. In the operational phase it is 
considered that there will be very little impact on the highway network as a result of 
the development. The existing access into the site has good visibility in both 
directions. The Highways officer has raised no objections to the proposal, subject 
to the imposition of conditions. 
 
Although it is accepted that there will be increased HGV movements during the 
construction phase Highways officers have confirmed that this would not be a level 
that would justify resisting the proposal, particularly bearing in mind the very low 
traffic generation once the plant is operational. 
 
Amenity Issues 
 
Policy IB9 part b of the UDP seeks to ensure that new development does not 
unacceptably affect the living conditions of any housing uses. Policy IB14 of the 
Unitary Development Plan requires the provision of an environmental buffer 
between industry and sensitive uses. 
 
Noise 
 
The closest residents are located on Rotherham Road immediately to the west of 
the application site such that this is a particularly important consideration. 
 
The application was accompanied by a Noise Assessment which has been 
reviewed by the Council’s Environmental Protection Service (EPS). A BS4142 
assessment has been undertaken which shows that the sound levels would be 
below the prevailing background noise levels during the daytime but would be 
above the prevailing background noise levels overnight. 
 
The EPS has directly contacted and discussed the scheme with the noise 
consultant to clarify how often the site is operated under emergency situations 
outside daytime hours in order to aid EPS comment. Following these discussions 
the EPS consider that the proposed mitigation within the noise assessment is 
satisfactory subject to it forming a condition of the development and that the plant 
does not operate overnight between the hours of 2300 and 0700 hours. 
 
Given the significant number of objections and concerns of local residents, in 
particular the potential noise impact of plant and equipment, the EPS has also 
recommended a condition requiring validation testing of the scheme of noise 
mitigation measures in order to confirm that the specified noise levels in the report 

Page 77



 

have been achieved – i.e – that there is no increase in background noise levels at 
the nearest noise sensitive receptors (housing) when the plant is operational. 
 
On this basis the proposal is considered to comply with Policy IB9 (b). 
 
Air Quality 
 
Policy CS66 of the Core Strategy states that action to protect air quality will be 
taken in all areas of the city. Further action to improve air quality will be taken 
across the built-up area, and particularly where residents in road corridors with 
high levels of traffic are directly exposed to levels of pollution above national 
targets.  
 

The urban area of Sheffield falls within an Air Quality Management Area due to 
breaches of UK and European Union thresholds for air quality, particularly due to 
exceedances of  NO2 (nitrous dioxide) and PM10 (particular matter) concentrations.  
 
The applicant has submitted an air quality assessment with the application 
prepared by Air Quality Consultants Ltd which carries out an assessment of the 
potential impact on local air quality arising from the operation of a proposed 
20MWe gas standby power generation facility from 8 generators. The report 
confirms that the effects of the construction phase of the development are not 
considered to have any adverse effect on air quality and can be managed by 
suitable construction management techniques. 
 
The proposal would result in the production of oxides of nitrogen generally referred 
to as NOx – a mixture of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and nitric oxide (NO), during the 
operation of the power plant, which is likely to have an impact on the local air 
quality. 
The Council’s Air Quality Officer has considered the assessment on the basis of 
the predicted 6.5m chimney height and of the proposed 1,500 hours of the year 
that the STOR facility is likely to be operational. 
 
On the basis of the information provided the Council’s Air Quality Officer is satisfied 
that the air quality assessment methodology employed is acceptable and that the 
findings are in order. There are no known exceedances of the air quality objectives 
within 1 kilometre of the site. The background levels of NO2 in the vicinity of the site 
using the Defra background maps are derived to be between 14.5 and 30.7 which 
is well below the objective value of 40. 
 
Due to the magnitude of change, as a result of the predicted impact of the annual 
average concentration of NO2 on residential properties in the local area, which is 
up to 2.2μg/m3, EPS asked the applicant to model the impact of the facility with an 
increased chimney height of 10 metres. An addendum to the original air quality 
assessment was submitted to model this scenario. The findings of the report show 
that there would only be a very minor benefit to ground level concentrations in 
increasing the height of the chimneys so this option has not been pursued in this 
case, particularly given the visual impact of this change. 
 

Page 78



 

The Air Quality Officer has considered the cumulative impact of this proposal with 
other similar facilities proposed on this estate and has confirmed that there is no 
basis for resisting the proposal on air quality grounds. 
 
The development is therefore considered to meet the terms of Policy CS66. 
 
Ground Conditions 
 
Policy MW9 of the Unitary Development Plan states that development will not be 
acceptable on unstable land unless it can be effectively treated. 
 
The application was accompanied by a Phase 1 Preliminary Risk Assessment and 
Coal Mining Assessment. The Council’s Environmental Protection Service has 
reviewed the submitted information. The original report was not considered to be 
satisfactory. The conceptual site model identifies buried tanks on a former garage 
site to west of the site.  
 
An updated Phase 1 report has subsequently been submitted to address the above 
issue and concludes that there is a low risk of contamination sources including the 
underground tank but that a Phase 2 site investigation report is required to confirm 
the exact mitigation / remediation that will be required. This can be secured by 
condition. 
 
On this basis the development complies with Policy MW9. 
 
Drainage 
 
The site is in Flood Zone 1 which means that it is not susceptible to flooding, 
making it an appropriate site for a flexible energy plant. Such facilities are indeed 
only permitted in Flood Zone 1. 
 
The application was not accompanied by a sustainable urban drainage statement 
and full drainage details would need to be reserved by condition if the scheme was 
considered acceptable in other respects.  
 
The Lead Local Flood Authority has confirmed that there is a surface water sewer 
adjacent to the site that would be the preferred route for discharge provided that 
Yorkshire Water is in agreement with this method. If this is the present route for the 
site and this can be proven, a 30% reduction based on the existing rate of 
discharge would be needed; otherwise a greenfield rate will apply. 
 
The lower part of the site could provide an environment for surface water treatment 
and attenuation within an open basin with shallow storage before offsite discharge.  
Capture and conveyance of flows from hard standing areas can be kept on the 
surface in adjacent landscapes, for example swales. These issues could be 
addressed in a future drainage submission. 
 
Yorkshire Water has raised no objections to the proposals subject to a condition 
requiring full drainage details prior to the development commencing. They have 
stated that the developer will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate that 

Page 79



 

surface water disposal via infiltration or watercourse are not reasonably practicable 
before considering disposal to the public sewer in Orgreave Road. 
 
It is considered that the drainage of the site can be dealt with satisfactorily subject 
to the imposition of a suitably worded condition. 
 
RESPONSE TO REPRESENTATIONS 
 
It is considered that the majority of issues raised have been covered in the main 
body of this report. 
 
The application is accompanied by supporting submissions which address the 
legitimate concerns of local residents. These reports have been assessed by the 
Council’s Air Quality Officer and the Environmental Protection Service and they 
have concluded that they concur with the findings of the reports to the extent that 
there is no justification for refusing the application on the grounds of air quality or 
noise impacts. 
 
The consultation on the planning application followed the principles set out in the 
Council’s Statement of Community Involvement. 
 
The site is designated as within a general industrial area and is surrounded by 
commercial uses. It is thus not currently an appropriate site on which to develop 
low cost housing as suggested by one of the respondents. 
 
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 
 
The proposal for a gas powered standby generation facility to generate up to 
20MW of electricity at short notice to meet peaks in demand within the local 
electricity network, fed though the National Grid, would assist with ensuring a 
stable electricity supply to meet the demands of economic growth.  
 
Local residents have raised legitimate concerns about the impact of the proposals 
in particular on local air quality and in terms of noise disturbance. These issues 
have been assessed by the Council’s technical experts and they have concluded 
that the impacts are at an acceptable level such that a refusal of planning 
permission on this basis would not be justified. 
 
Whilst it is accepted that there will be HGV movements associated with the 
construction phase of the development, in the operational phase there will be very 
few vehicle movements associated with the use as the site is only visited for 
maintenance and security reasons. 
 
The visual impact of the proposal has been carefully considered and this is the 
issue that is of significant concern given the particular locational characteristics of 
the site in question, being at the very edge of the industrial estate and in very close 
proximity to an established residential area. Given that the development essentially 
consists of open storage of plant and equipment it is considered to be of poor 
design.  
 

Page 80



 

For these reasons your officers initially raised considerable concern about the 
visual impact of the proposals. The applicant has addressed this issue through the 
submission of a comprehensive visibility assessment and landscaping strategy 
which proposes significant additional woodland and hedgerow planting, such that 
well over half of the application site would be woodland planted, resulting in both 
visual and biodiversity enhancements. 
 
Having regard to all of the material considerations in this case it is considered that, 
on balance, the proposed development complies with the provisions of the 
Development Plan and guidance contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
It is therefore recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the 
listed conditions. 

Page 81



 

 
 

Page 82



 
 

 
Report of:   Director of City Growth Service 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    5 December 2017 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   RECORD OF PLANNING APPEALS   
                                           SUBMISSIONS & DECISIONS 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Claire Woods 0114 2734219 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
List of all newly submitted planning appeals and decisions received, together 
with a brief summary of the Inspector’s reason for the decision 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations   
   
 
Recommendations: 
 
To Note 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 
 

   

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning & Highways 

Committee 

Page 83

Agenda Item 12



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
 
      REPORT TO PLANNING &  
      HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE 
      05 DECEMBER 2017 
 
 
1.0   RECORD OF PLANNING APPEALS SUBMISSIONS AND DECISIONS   

 

This report provides a schedule of all newly submitted planning appeals and 
decisions received, together with a brief summary of the Secretary of State’s 
reasons for the decisions. 
 
 
2.0  NEW APPEALS RECEIVED 
 

(i) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for a 
single storey rear extension and side extension including raised rear decking 
for 31 Crawshaw Grove Sheffield S8 7EA (Case No 17/01791/FUL) 
 

(ii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for the 
construction of means of a vehicular access, formation of car parking area 
and demolition to part of front boundary wall at 7 Priory Road Sharrow 
Sheffield S7 1LW (Case No 17/02682/FUL) 
 

(iii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for the 
erection of first-floor extension above existing porch at 100 Charlton Drive 
Sheffield S35 3PE (Case No 17/01430/FUL) 
 

(iv) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for a first 
floor rear extension and single-storey side/rear extension to dwellinghouse at 
90 Brooklands Crescent Sheffield S10 4GG (Case No 17/02082/FUL) 
 

(v) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for a 
Two-storey side extension, two/single-storey rear extension, alterations to roof 
space to form habitable accommodation and erection of a rear dormer window 
(As amended plans) at 39 Old Park Avenue Sheffield S8 7DQ (Case No 
17/01529/FUL) 
 

(vi) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for the 
alterations to roof of dwellinghouse including raised ridge height, hip-to-gable 
extensions and dormer windows to front and rear at 55 Trap Lane Sheffield 
S11 7RF (Case No 17/00534/FUL) 
 

Page 84



(vii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse advertisement consent for 3 
non illuminated vinyl graphic signs at ALDI Boston Street Sheffield S2 4QA 
(Case No 17/02302/ADV) 
 

(viii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse listed building consent for 
replacement of wooden guttering with aluminium at 100 - 104 Townhead 
Road Sheffield S17 3GB (Case No 17/00698/LBC) 
 

(viiii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for the 
erection of a temporary 2.4 metre high palisade boundary fence at Handley 
Street Sheffield S3 9LG (Case No 17/02482/FUL) 
 

(x) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse prior notification for the 
installation of telecommunications equipment including 12m column, 3 no. 
antennas, 3 no. equipment cabinets and ancillary development (Application 
for determination if approval required for siting and appearance) at Junction 
Of Arnold Avenue And Stoneley Crescent Sheffield S12 3JA (Case No 
17/01460/TEL) 
 

(xi) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for the 
erection of a storm porch at The Corner House New Hall Farm New Hall Lane 
Sheffield S36 4AE (Case No 17/01847/FUL) 
 

(xii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to refuse planning permission for the 
erection of detached dwelling at Land To Rear Of 27 And 29 Cairns Road 
Crosspool Sheffield S10 5NA (Case No 17/00256/OUT) 
 

(xiii) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
enforcement notice issued by the City Council for White Waters, Station 
Road, Halfway, Sheffield, S20 3AD (Case No 17/00398/ENCHU) 
 

 
 
4.0  APPEALS DECISIONS - ALLOWED 
 

(i) To report that an appeal against the delegated decision of the Council to 
refuse planning consent for a single-storey side/front extension to 
dwellinghouse at 198 Gleadless Road, Sheffield S2 3AF (Case No 
17/01104/FUL) 
 

Officer Comment:- 
The Inspector identified the key issue as being the impact of the extension on 
the character and appearance of Gleadless Road. 
 

Page 85



He noted the property was an end terrace of four modern houses with a stone 
finish and agreed with the Council that there was no overriding character, with 
differing architectural styles and size of property.  
 
He noted the wrap-around nature of the extension and that the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance requires extensions to be designed in a 
way that they continue the building types or features that are heavily 
characteristic of an area, but that they may still be unacceptable if they 
destroy the rhythm of a group or row of houses, or have an overbearing 
projection. 
 
He concluded that as there was no overriding character in the vicinity, and 
that taking into account the slope, building line and relationship with 
neighbouring dwellings, there was no clearly established rhythm to the group 
of properties. He also considered the extension was arguably be more in 
keeping with the host property than the existing lean to shed. 
 
He therefore concluded it would not be harmful to the character or 
appearance of Gleadless Road and would not therefore conflict with UDP 
policy H14, nor with the SPG. He therefore allowed the appeal and granted 
planning permission subject to conditions. 
 
 

 
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 That the report be noted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rob Murfin 
Chief Planning Officer                          05 December 2017 
  
 
 

Page 86


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Sheffield Conservation Advisory Group
	8 Proposed Closure of Part of Public Footpath ECC/16B at Chapeltown
	Closure of part of footpath ECC16B Chapeltown Appx A
	Closure of part of footpath ECC16B Chapeltown Appx B
	Closure of part of footpath ECC16B Chapeltown Appx C

	9 Proposed Closure of Public Footpath ECC/80 at Ecclesfield
	Closure of footpath ECC80 Ecclesfield Appx A
	Closure of footpath ECC80 Ecclesfield Appx B
	Closure of footpath ECC80 Ecclesfield Appx C

	10 Proposed Closure of Public Footpath SHE/460 at Norton
	SHE_460 Norton Appx A
	SHE_460 Norton Appx B

	11 Applications Under Various Acts/Regulations
	Plan Apps Report

	12 Record of Planning Appeal Submissions and Decisions



